










 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MEETING 
 
 
 

       
 
 
 
 

       
 
 
 
 

MAY 2, 2011 

1



 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA 

 

BOARD MEETING                   STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 

6:30 P.M.                                  5606 SOUTH 147th STREET 

                                                              MAY 2, 2011 

AGENDA 

 

A. Call to Order 

 

The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection 

 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Public Comments on agenda items – This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items 

only.  Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 

 

E. Routine Matters 

1. *Approval of Board of Education Minutes – April 18, 2011 

2. *Approval of Bills 

3. *Receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File 

 

F. Information Items 

1. Employees of the Month 

2. Showcase:  Presidential Scholars, DECA, Debate, Forensics, World Languages, Culinary Arts, Family Career 

and Community Leaders of America, Health Occupations Students of America, Skills USA  

3. Board Comments/Announcements 

4. Report from Student Representatives 

 

G. Unfinished Business: 

 

H. New Business 

1. Reduction of Board Applications 

2. First Reading of Policy 3122 – Support Services – Business - Procurement Card  

3. Approval of Rule 3811.1 – Support Services – Transportation – Students – Regular Education  

4. First Reading of Policy 5410 – Pupil Services – Substance Use 

5. First Reading of Policy 5480 – Pupil Services – Search and Seizure  

6. First Reading of Policy 5490 – Pupil Services – Use of Alcohol and other Drug Testing Technology 

7. Administrator for Hire 

8. Approval of Personnel Actions: Resignations and New Hires 

9. Negotiation (Executive Session) 

 

I. Reports 

1. Enrollment Report 

2. Legislative Update  

3. Report on Instructional Hours 

 

J.   Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar.   

1. Foundation Hall of Fame Banquet on Friday, May 6, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Qwest Center 

2. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, May 9, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147
th

 Street 

3. Employee Recognition Dinner on Wednesday, May 11, 2011 at 5:30 p.m. at Georgetown Club 

4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 16, 2010, 2011 at 5:15 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147
th

 Street 

 

 

2



 

 

Agenda 

May 2, 2011 

Page 2 

 

 

5. 2011 Graduation on Saturday, May 28, 2011 at Civic Auditorium – Millard North at 10 a.m., Millard South at 1 

p.m., and Millard West at 4 p.m. 

6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 6, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 

5606 South 147
th

 Street 

7. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, June 13, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147
th

 Street 

8. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 20, 2010, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147
th

 Street 

9. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, July 11, 2010, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147
th

 Street 

 

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.  Please make sure a request 

form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 

L.  Adjournment:   

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  Items may 

be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 

 

3



 

 

 

.BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

OMAHA, NEBRASKA  

 

BOARD MEETING       STROH ADMINISTRATION CENTER 

6:30 P.M.                         5606 SOUTH 147TH STREET 

                                                                 MAY 2, 2011 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE MEMORANDUM 

A. Call to Order 

 

 The Public Meeting Act is posted on the Wall and Available for Public Inspection 

 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Public Comments on agenda items - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on agenda items 

only.  Please make sure a request form is given to the Board President prior to the meeting. 

 

*E.1. Motion by                     , seconded by, ______________, to approve the Board of Education Minutes – April 18, 

2011.  (See enclosure.) 

 

*E.2. Motion by                     , seconded by                     , to approve the bills.  (See enclosures.) 

 

*E.3.  Motion by                     , seconded by                     , to receive the Treasurer’s Report and Place on File.  (See 

enclosure.) 

 

F.1.  Employees of the Month 

 

F.2.  Showcase:  Presidential Scholars, DECA, Debate, Forensics, World Languages, Culinary Arts, Family Career 

 and Community Leaders of America, Health Occupations Students of America, Skills USA 

 

F.3.  Board Comments/Announcements 

 

F.4.  Report from Student Representative 

 

H.1. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve the reduction of Board Applications 

to five (See enclosure.) 

 

H.2.  First Reading of Policy 3122 – Support Services – Business – Procurement Card 

 

H.3. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve  (1) the proposed revisions to Rule 

3811.1 be approved as submitted, (2) that the proposed elementary transportation service areas be approved as 

submitted, and (3) that the price for middle school partial-pay transportation be set at $1.50 per trip ($3.00 per 

day) commencing with the start of the 2011-12 school year. 

 

H.4.  First Reading of Policy 5410 – Pupil Services – Substance Use 

 

H.5. First Reading of Policy 5480 – Pupil Services – Search and Seizure (See enclosure.) 

 

 

 

 

4



 

 

Administrative Memorandum 

May 2, 2011 

Page 2 

 

 

H.6. First Reading of Policy 5490 – Pupil Services – Use of Alcohol and other Drug Testing Technology (See 

enclosure.) 

 

H.7. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Administrator for Hire: Jeffrey 

Kerns, Assistant Principal at Andersen Middle School (See enclosure.) 

 

H.8. Motion by ______________, seconded by ________________, to approve Personnel Actions: Resignations, 

and New Hires (See enclosure.) 

 

H.9. Negotiation (Executive Session) 

 
I.  Reports: 

1. Enrollment Report 

2. Legislative Update 

3. Report on Instructional Hours 

 

J.  Future Agenda Items/Board Calendar 

1. Foundation Hall of Fame Banquet on Friday, May 6, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Qwest Center 

2. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, May 9, 2011 at 6:30 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147
th
 Street 

3. Employee Recognition Dinner on Wednesday, May 11, 2011 at 5:30 p.m. at Georgetown Club 

4. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, May 16, 2010, 2011 at 5:15 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147
th
 Street 

5. 2011 Graduation on Saturday, May 28, 2011 at Civic Auditorium – Millard North at 10 a.m., Millard South at 

1 p.m., and Millard West at 4 p.m. 

6. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 6, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration Center, 

5606 South 147
th
 Street 

7. Committee of the Whole Meeting on Monday, June 13, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147
th
 Street 

8. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, June 20, 2010, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147
th
 Street 

9. Board of Education Meeting on Monday, July 11, 2010, 2011 at 6:00 p.m. at the Don Stroh Administration 

Center, 5606 South 147
th
 Street 

 

K. Public Comments - This is the proper time for public questions and comments on any topic.  Please make sure a 

request form is given to the Board President before the meeting begins. 

 

L.  Adjournment 

 

All items indicated by an asterisk (*) will comprise the Consent Agenda and may be acted on in a single motion.  Items 

may be deleted from the Consent Agenda by request of any board member. 

5



MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO 17 

 

A meeting was held of the Board of Education of the School District No. 17, in the County of Douglas in the State of 

Nebraska.  The meeting was convened in open and public session at 6:30 p.m., Monday, April 18, 2011, at the Don Stroh 

Administration Center, 5606 South 147th Street.   

 

Present: Dave Anderson, Mike Pate, Linda Poole, Mike Kennedy, and Patrick Ricketts  

 

Notice of this meeting was given in advance thereof by publication in the Daily Record on Friday, April 15, 2011; a copy 

of the publication is being attached to these minutes.  Notice of this meeting was given to all members of the Board of 

Education and a copy of their Acknowledgment of Receipt of Notice and the agenda are attached to these minutes.  

Availability of the agenda was communicated in advance notice and in the notice of the Board of Education of this 

meeting.  All proceedings hereafter shown were taken while the convened meeting was open to the attendance of the 

public. 

 

 

At 6:30 p.m. Dave Anderson called the meeting to order and announced the public meeting Act is posted on the wall and 

available for public inspection.  Mr. Anderson asked everyone to say the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Roll call was taken and all members were present. 

 

Motion by Mike Kennedy seconded by Linda Poole, to approve the Board of Education Minutes from April 4, 2011, to 

approve the bills, and receive the treasurer’s report and place on file, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion 

carried. 

 

Linda Poole summarized the Committee of the Whole meeting from Thursday, April 14, 2011.  The topic of discussion 

was on safety and security. 

 

Showcase highlighted students from Millard West and Millard South in swimming. 

 

Employees of the Month were Renee Kaspar, paraprofessional at Kiewit Middle School and Julia Kolander, Latin teacher 

at Millard North High School. 

 

Superintendent’s Comments: 

 

1.   Reminder that Dr. Lutz will be absent for the next couple of weeks.  Plans are to be back around May 16th. 

 

2. Board members were encouraged to review their calendar in regards to all of the upcoming events in April 

and May. 

 

3. There are tickets available if Board members would like to attend the Millard Business Association Gala. 

 

4.   Dr. Lutz reviewed the timeline for submission of applications for the board vacancy.  He also talked about the 

procedure for interviews, and on the voting process for the candidates at a board meeting. 

 

5. A reminder that graduation is set for Saturday, May 28, 2011 with Millard North at 10 a.m., Millard South at 

1 p.m. and Millard West for 4 p.m. 

 

6. June 1, 2011 is the last day for students, which will be a half-day.  This may change next year due to the 

impact of school finances.  June 2, 2011 will be the last day for teachers. 

 

Dave Anderson suggested to the other board members about submitting questions that could be used during the board 

candidate interview process. 

 

 

6



Board of Education Minutes 

April 18, 2011 

Page 2 

 

 

Board Comments: 

 

Mike Kennedy expressed his frustration about the comments made by Rick Kolowski from the Learning Community, 

because it was an attack on board members.  They were very offensive comments. 

 

Mr. Kennedy said the National School Boards Association Conference was a collaborative opportunity, and was a 

beneficial conference to attend. 

 

Mike Pate corrected a comment by Mr. Kennedy that Rick Kolowski is not a school board member, but a member of the 

Learning Community board. 

 

Mr. Pate said he attended several sessions at the National School Boards Association Conference.  One was on using the 

iTouch in the classroom, and another was the Blue Valley, KS presentation on their business partnership program.  Their 

students actually are involved in the day to day operations at a business and get real life working skills along with 

receiving dual credit.  He had information to share with the district. 

 

Linda Poole wished Dr. Lutz well in the next few weeks, and that things will run just fine. 

 

Mrs. Poole expressed interest in attending the Millard Business Association dinner. 

 

Mrs. Poole stated that she too was offended by the comments made by Rick Kolowski.  She said this board has an 

educator, a banker, a financial planner, a chief financial officer of a company, and an attorney which makes for the best 

well rounded board of education. 

 

Mrs. Poole reported that she is on spring break from her teaching, so she took her student teacher and visited Aldrich 

Elementary and Montclair Elementary to observe classes. 

 

Mrs. Poole provided information about two of the speakers at the National School Boards Conference, which were 

Condoleezza Rice and Daniel Pink.  She also attended the presentation by the Teacher of the Year, who is from Iowa, and 

went to the exhibition hall to see what other districts are using.  Mrs. Poole said she was appreciative of the opportunity to 

be able to attend the conference, and the district would not be world class if there wasn’t a time to see what other choices 

are available. 

 

Patrick Ricketts viewed his opportunity to attend the National School Boards Association Conference to not only meet 

board members from other states, but get to know and learn from the Millard board members.  He attended the 

presentation by the Teacher of the Year, in addition to the general sessions speakers, and was appreciative of this 

opportunity. 

 

Alison Brokke, student representative from Millard West, Jeff Story, student representative from Millard North, and Isis 

Hernandez, student representative from Millard South reported on academic and athletic activities at their respective high 

schools. 

 

Mike Kennedy provided the final reading of Policy 3225 – Support Services – Business – Property – Sale & Disposal.  

Motion by Mike Kennedy, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve Policy 3225 – Support Services – Business – Property – 

Sale & Disposal, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried.  

 

Motion by Linda Poole, seconded by Patrick Ricketts, to approve Rule 5200.1 – Pupil Services – Attendance – 

Attendance and Tardiness, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 

 

Motion by Patrick Ricketts, seconded by Linda Poole, to approve Rule 6110.1 – Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment 

– Written Curriculum – Content Standards, upon roll call vote, all members voted aye.  Motion carried. 

7





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Millard Public Schools 
May 2, 2011 

 

9



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  May 2, 2011

Date: 4/27/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
CITY OF OMAHA025197322975 90.00 
COX COMMUNICATIONS INC108436322977 44,032.01 
MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS FOUNDATION065310322980 525.00 
PERFORMANCE TOYOTA OF LAVISTA132072322997 5,000.00 
AP BY THE SEA135196322998 695.00 
FATHER FLANAGANS BOYS HOME132699323000 102.17 
WRIGHT EXPRESS FINANCIAL SVCS CORP138496323001 24,390.45 
HY-VEE INC133397323002 939.11 
HY-VEE INC049850323003 236.96 
SAM'S CLUB DIRECT081630323004 82.17 
TY'S OUTDOOR POWER & SERVICE INC135505323005 206.64 
UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA-LINCOLN068834323006 120.00 
YOUTH FRONTIERS INC135890323007 750.00 
A & D TECHNICAL SUPPLY CO INC010040323008 218.90 
AA WHEEL & TRUCK SUPPLY INC107252323009 190.00 
ACADEMIC COMMUNICATION ASSOC INC010275323010 81.40 
TEK INDUSTRIES INC010298323011 122.50 
ACT INC010003323012 135.00 
KAREN S ADAMS133402323013 60.49 
PPE INC132882323014 398.30 
AIRGAS NORTH CENTRAL INC108351323015 48.60 
AKSARBEN PIPE & SEWER CLEANING LLC133620323016 725.00 
ALEGENT HEALTH136365323017 4,916.66 
ALL MAKES OFFICE EQUIPMENT011051323018 384.92 
ALLIED OIL & SUPPLY, INC.011185323019 338.65 
AMAZON.COM INC107651323020 664.77 
ENCOREONE LLC133174323021 810.00 
AMSAN LLC069689323022 39,720.55 
DANIELLE M ANDERSON138548323023 17.39 
JILL M ANDERSON131265323024 55.61 
APPLE COMPUTER INC012989323025 12,477.00 
AQUA-CHEM INC106436323026 24,221.90 
DIANE ARAUJO133770323027 34.83 
ART STUDIO CLAY COMPANY013209323028 7.58 
ASCD  (CONFERENCE/REGISTRATIONS)106167323029 319.00 
SARAH A ASCHENBRENNER134235323030 116.74 
ATLAS PEN & PENCIL CORPORATION100014323033 138.94 
AUTISM CENTER OF NEBRASKA INC138291323034 17,887.41 
AUTO STATION102237323035 780.55 
ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY LP108092323036 906.99 
B & H PHOTO102727323037 90.75 
BADGER BODY & TRUCK EQUIPMENT CO016295323038 175.00 
BAG 'N SAVE132405323039 34.16 
REX J BARKER017908323040 86.90 
BARNES & NOBLE BOOKSTORE099646323041 7,586.19 
CYNTHIA L BARR-MCNAIR017877323042 101.13 

10



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  May 2, 2011

Date: 4/27/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
LORI A BARTELS107979323043 148.76 
JULIE A BARTHOLOMEW133353323044 77.41 
BAXTER FORD INC138054323045 55.00 
BEADLE MIDDLE SCHOOL130674323046 949.00 
BRIAN F BEGLEY107540323047 105.57 
BERENS-TATE CONSULTING GROUP INC107322323048 2,000.00 
JULIE K BERGSTROM134884323049 42.74 
BERINGER CIACCIO DENNELL MABREY133480323050 1,608.00 
BEYOND PLAY130683323052 120.40 
BIO CORPORATION132475323053 324.62 
BISHOP BUSINESS EQUIPMENT019111323054 29,552.78 
TIFFANY M BOCK SMITH134478323055 47.43 
KIMBERLY M BOLAN130899323056 236.64 
SHEILA F BOLMEIER135539323057 61.66 
BOSE CORPORATION138174323058 4,079.52 
WILLIAMS PROPERTIES LLC136633323059 396.00 
BOUND TO STAY BOUND BOOKS INC019559323060 5,095.68 
BOYS TOWN NATIONAL019835323061 3,536.24 
FWD MEDIA INC134129323062 785.00 
ROBIN L BREEDLOVE134915323063 158.17 
PAMELA A BRENNAN130576323064 204.51 
NANCY A BROWN133824323065 35.50 
MICHAEL BRUCH137458323066 55.16 
BRAD BURKLUND136312323068 202.42 
CHARLES J BURNEY132910323069 87.21 
BUSINESS MEDIA INC099431323070 3,039.58 
SCOTT G BUTLER134237323071 68.14 
EILEEN CABRERA137274323072 28.51 
CALLOWAY HOUSE INC023831323074 500.91 
CAMBIUM LEARNING134350323075 2,500.00 
CAROLINA BIOLOGICAL SUPPLY CO023970323076 204.45 
JOHN T CARROLL024052323077 36.92 
CURTIS R CASE131158323078 66.30 
CCS PRESENTATION SYSTEMS133970323079 97,559.78 
CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.133589323081 11,864.04 
CENGAGE LEARNING051572323082 5,157.10 
CENTRAL SALES INC138613323083 443.78 
CENTRAL STATES INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY024425323084 1,160.23 
NCH CORPORATION132206323085 49.50 
MALCOLM K CHAI134043323086 331.50 
CHANNING BETE COMPANY INC018865323087 325.91 
ERIK P CHAUSSEE132271323088 41.82 
KEVIN J CHICK106836323089 836.65 
CHILDREN'S HOME HEALTHCARE106851323090 6,651.75 
CITY OF OMAHA025197323091 100.00 
CITY OF OMAHA132061323092 70.00 

11



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  May 2, 2011

Date: 4/27/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
DALE CLAUSEN025235323093 171.36 
PATRICIA A CLIFTON131135323094 78.44 
KAREN J COATES137739323095 32.13 
NANCY S COLE137013323096 96.34 
SHARON R COMISAR-LANGDON022701323097 271.83 
CFI TIRE SERVICE INC138546323098 396.00 
COMMONWEALTH ELECTRIC130646323099 551.83 
COMMUNICATION SERVICES INC.106902323100 1,368.53 
CONTROL MASTERS INC026057323101 9,298.85 
CONTROLTEMP INC132720323102 2,826.00 
ROBERT COOK138614323103 55.16 
VICKI L COTTON134763323104 7.50 
CPI QUALIFIED PLAN CONSULTANTS INC137395323106 50.00 
CREATIVE TEACHING PRESS INC100300323107 97.68 
JOSEPH R CRUM136088323108 262.85 
PATRICIA A CRUM109021323109 45.00 
CUMMINS CENTRAL POWER LLC027300323110 236.00 
CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES INC027345323111 3,278.00 
CHERYL L CUSTARD130900323112 137.19 
PAM S D'AMOUR138536323113 40.80 
JANET L DAHLGAARD131483323114 108.53 
JEAN T DAIGLE132671323115 132.35 
DAILY RECORD131003323116 102.11 
STACY DARNOLD138306323117 122.60 
PAMELA M DAVIS032246323118 98.69 
CHERYL R DECKER032497323119 76.50 
DEFFENBAUGH INDUSTRIES107469323120 11,239.44 
DEFFENBAUGH INDUSTRIES107469323121 13,950.02 
ANDREW S DEFREECE106713323122 386.25 
DENNIS SUPPLY COMPANY032872323124 4,874.83 
BASTIAN DERICHS137331323125 32.44 
DEX MEDIA EAST LLC109850323126 231.16 
DICK BLICK CO099220323127 2,769.91 
JOHN D DICKEY132750323128 38.81 
DIESEL POWER EQUIPMENT CO INC137713323129 140.54 
DIETZE MUSIC HOUSE INC033473323134 7,417.68 
DIGITAL DOT SYSTEMS INC132669323135 421.95 
DIRECT ADVANTAGE131797323136 28.63 
DKAH SERVICES CORP135933323138 60.00 
MATTHEW L DOMINY135973323139 375.85 
LINDA K DONOHUE135373323140 70.38 
DOUGLAS COUNTY SCHOOL DIST.28-0001130908323145 394,262.52 
SUSAN M DULANY135689323146 81.25 
DURHAM MUSEUM094249323147 153.00 
E & A CONSULTING GROUP INC133806323148 1,730.00 
EAGLE SOFTWARE INC,131740323149 970.00 

12



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  May 2, 2011

Date: 4/27/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
KELLY EALY138426323150 71.71 
EASTERN NE HUMAN SERVICES AGENCY036520323152 20,128.00 
ECHO ELECTRIC SUPPLY CO052370323153 1,499.09 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3037525323154 1,250.00 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3037525323155 89,572.76 
EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATION SKILLS INC101277323156 3,125.00 
EHLY'S INTERIORS107980323157 350.00 
REBECCA S EHRHORN133823323158 315.65 
ELECTRONIC SOUND INC.038140323159 2,254.12 
ENCHANTED LEARNING, LLC135938323160 125.00 
ELIZABETH A ENGELBART130373323161 144.13 
ENGINEERED CONTROLS INC132066323162 1,378.55 
EPCO LTD. INC.102720323163 336.00 
ERIC ARMIN INC102791323164 81.75 
NEBRASKA ESU COOP PURCHASING135656323167 1,656.67 
ETA/CUISENAIRE035610323168 274.56 
RLB ENTERPRISE LLC131927323170 40.00 
FEDERAL EXPRESS040450323172 747.35 
ALICIA C FEIST131826323173 203.35 
MARK W FELDHAUSEN040470323174 60.84 
LESLIE ELISE FELICI137266323175 75.58 
FERRELLGAS106956323176 16.82 
JOSHUA P FIELDS136320323177 413.60 
FILTER SHOP INC133919323178 3,153.85 
FIREGUARD INC133960323179 1,191.68 
FLINN SCIENTIFIC INC041086323181 378.86 
FLORIDA LEAGUE OF IB SCHOOLS/FLIBS102708323183 795.00 
FOLLETT LIBRARY RESOURCES041100323184 5,765.69 
FOREST SCIENTIFIC CORPORATION132165323185 1,225.00 
KENNETH J FOSSEN041146323186 35.45 
JESSICA J FRANK138615323187 55.16 
AMY J FRIEDMAN041543323188 42.53 
FROG PUBLICATIONS101528323189 69.80 
FUTURE HORIZONS INC042025323190 245.00 
GEYER INSTRUCTIONAL AIDS CO.044470323191 261.95 
GLASSMASTERS INC106660323193 1,324.00 
JUDITH A GLESNE135809323194 22.44 
GOPHER044891323195 1,423.12 
DIANE K GOSE136192323196 16.47 
JASON C GOSNELL134868323197 72.42 
GP DIRECT043609323198 157.18 
GRAINGER INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY044950323199 2,087.98 
KATHERINE A GRAY044965323200 99.50 
GRAYBAR ELECTRIC COMPANY INC099888323201 949.25 
GREAT IDEAS FOR TEACHING INC099260323202 93.45 
HARRY S GRIMMINGER130083323203 41.82 

13



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  May 2, 2011

Date: 4/27/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
JODI T GROSSE136046323204 30.60 
CANDRA R GUENTHER135016323205 153.82 
HAL LEONARD CORPORATION059223323206 325.99 
HANCOCK FABRICS101931323207 90.45 
ERIKA HANKE137430323208 16.63 
JAMES R HANLON136805323209 602.50 
HAPPY CAB COMPANY INC047853323211 20,095.45 
HARRY A KOCH COMPANY056820323212 3,667.00 
JEAN M HASTINGS136458323213 56.00 
HAUFF SPORTING GOODS COMPANY048200323214 27.95 
HEARTLAND FOUNDATION048475323215 12,848.00 
GREENWOOD PUBLISHING GROUP INC048517323218 92,869.59 
HEMPEL SHEET METAL134288323219 1,100.00 
DAVID C HEMPHILL108478323220 75.48 
OMAHA ZOOLOGICAL SOCIETY101881323221 87.75 
HEWLETT PACKARD CO132423323222 20,447.51 
CAMILLE H HINZ048845323224 27.85 
A & E HOME VIDEO100699323225 29.95 
HOCKENBERGS EQUIP & SUPPLY CO INC048960323227 4,356.60 
JULIA HOLZ136736323228 55.16 
RICK W HOOK049330323229 275.17 
LINDA D HORTON095520323230 80.68 
HOUGHTON MIFFLIN HARCOURT PUB CO049650323231 16,734.00 
HUSKER MIDWEST PRINTING101032323232 1,063.65 
HW WILSON COMPANY095150323233 455.00 
POPCO INC051573323234 31.00 
IKON OFFICE SOLUTIONS INC133882323236 80,643.00 
INDOFF, INC.135502323238 3,161.00 
INFO-TECH RESEARCH GROUP INCF03027323239 990.00 
INTERNATIONAL BACCALAUREATE ORG.F03011323241 1,902.83 
INTERNATIONAL READING ASSOC052150323242 346.68 
INTERSTATE ALL BATTERY CENTER102958323243 5,700.60 
J A SEXAUER101991323245 161.58 
ITHAKA138617323246 1,875.00 
J W PEPPER & SON INC.100928323247 2,331.01 
JACKSON-JACKSON & ASSOCIATES INC138616323248 1,288.92 
JACQUELINE K JACOX054159323249 40.45 
JANELLE PUBLICATIONS INC054230323250 166.10 
HANNELORE W JASA054240323251 26.16 
JSDO I LLC136953323252 676.71 
GEORGE W JELKIN135735323254 1,040.01 
DEBBIE A JENKINS133059323255 119.29 
JENSEN TIRE COMPANY133037323257 5,142.84 
DESIREE K JOHN135999323259 72.63 
AMANDA J JOHNSON131367323260 800.00 
JOHNSON CONTROLS INC130994323261 46,200.00 

14



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  May 2, 2011

Date: 4/27/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
MICHELLE JOHNSON138055323262 55.16 
NANCY A JOHNSTON059573323263 57.33 
JOHNSTONE SUPPLY054630323264 5.48 
JP COOKE COMPANY026300323266 247.01 
KYLE A JURGENS135815323267 92.31 
DAVID KAHM137214323268 82.74 
KAPCO101224323269 981.24 
KAPLAN EARLY LEARNING CO056215323270 32.95 
CATHERINE A KEISER132265323271 106.08 
SUSAN L KELLEY132272323273 102.93 
KELVIN ELECTRONICS056276323274 49.50 
JULIE B KEMP134801323275 29.07 
ANDREA L KIDD131177323276 19.58 
DENNIS F KIMBERLIN132676323279 653.10 
DIANE L KINNEY106203323280 112.10 
BRADLEY A KISICKI056742323281 100.98 
KIWANIS CLUB OF SOUTHWEST OMAHA084090323282 500.00 
BETTY H KLESITZ056770323283 46.41 
LARISSA K KNUDSON135946323284 54.00 
KONICA MINOLTA PRINTING SOLUTIONS134607323285 1,188.76 
MARY K KREIS130480323286 20.91 
KUBAT PHARMACY/HEALTHCARE133923323287 225.00 
JOSEPH R KUEHL137385323288 56.87 
AMANDA J KUNES109033323290 186.66 
VICTORIA KYROS132934323291 30.60 
MCKAYLA LABORDE137694323292 75.18 
CHRISTINA A LAGRONE137010323293 65.03 
LAIDLAW TRANSIT INC058755323294 31,382.11 
LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS099217323295 135.46 
LAMP RYNEARSON ASSOCIATES INC058775323296 1,276.80 
LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES135257323297 551.15 
LORENE M LARSEN121124323298 56.00 
DENISE A LARSON135688323299 76.50 
JANET L LARSON136518323300 28.41 
LAWSON PRODUCTS INC135156323303 79.30 
LEARNING HEADQUARTERS LLC138545323304 137.63 
JEFFREY SCHRANK059100323305 322.35 
BONNIE K LEVINGER137345323309 28.05 
LIBERTY HARDWOODS INC137296323310 1,639.00 
LIEN TERMITE & PEST CONTROL INC059470323311 570.00 
LINGUISYSTEMS, INC.059577323312 609.35 
MATHESON TRI-GAS INC059560323313 836.25 
TRACY LOGAN133027323314 1,550.42 
TODD LORENZ138619323315 55.16 
LOVE AND LOGIC INSTITUTE INC099965323316 297.00 
LOWE'S HOME CENTERS INC131397323317 380.24 

15



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  May 2, 2011

Date: 4/27/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
LRP PUBLICATIONS INC057770323318 571.50 
NATASHA E LUDWIG134568323319 14.99 
CASEY I LUNDGREN135376323320 41.31 
MACKIN BOOK CO099321323321 11,710.57 
KEITH W MALY138473323322 54.06 
KAREN M MARBLE137007323323 142.80 
SUSAN N MARLATT133505323324 218.28 
DAWN M MARTEN133201323325 598.36 
DEBRA J MARTINEZ131303323326 315.02 
MAX I WALKER108052323328 371.83 
MAXIM HEALTHCARE SERVICES INC138341323329 5,643.82 
DANIEL R MCCONNELL136618323330 69.11 
AMERICAN BUSINESS NETWORK100944323332 2,109.60 
RYE L MCINTOSH137014323334 126.59 
ALBERT G MCKAIN063361323335 57.89 
MECHANICAL SALES INC.064260323336 158.13 
MECHANICAL SALES PARTS INC137947323337 889.09 
PATRICIA A MEEKER121126323338 31.21 
CHAD M MEISGEIER136470323339 621.74 
MENTORING MINDS LP135331323340 743.10 
ANGELA R MERCIER017611323341 32.64 
METAL DOORS & HARDWARE COMPANY INC064600323342 2,145.00 
AMERICAN NATIONAL BANK133403323344 10,765.28 
MID-WEST TECH INC102466323345 5,931.80 
MIDLAND COMPUTER INC102870323346 2,766.84 
MIDWEST METAL WORKS INC064950323348 212.00 
MIDWEST SHOP SUPPLIES INC065200323349 298.00 
MIDWEST TURF & IRRIGATION INC065233323350 1,057.95 
KIM R MIKOS131187323351 35.68 
MILLARD LUMBER INC065400323352 933.20 
MILLARD MANUFACTURING COMPANY099585323353 1,100.00 
MILLARD SCHOOLS ADMIN ACTIVITY FUND065410323354 471.35 
ANNE C MILLER135388323355 16.73 
SANDRA R MILLER132412323356 50.75 
LINDA K MOHLMAN133962323358 10.69 
MITCHELL S MOLLRING136388323359 236.40 
MORRISSEY ENGINEERING INC134532323361 25,105.00 
DONITA L MOSEMAN132491323362 17.34 
SHON J MOSSER138437323363 240.80 
RC CENTS INC136773323364 159.20 
MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO063150323365 4,389.51 
DEVONYE J MULLINS137052323366 189.62 
NASCO067000323367 498.23 
NATIONAL SAFETY COUNCIL132854323368 40.00 
JOHN C NOWELL067996323369 68.44 
NATIONAL SCIENCE TEACHERS ASSOC068020323370 2,750.66 

16



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  May 2, 2011

Date: 4/27/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
NCECBVI102522323371 80.00 
SCANTRON CORP130548323372 728.49 
NEBRASKA AIR FILTER INC068334323373 2,165.46 
NEBRASKA EDUCATIONAL TECH ASSN100216323374 2,965.00 
NEBRASKA FURNITURE MART INC068445323375 544.00 
NANCY G NELSON131550323377 21.52 
HEIDI JO NEUMANN136004323378 153.39 
CAROL C NEWTON069099323380 21.06 
NEXTEL PARTNERS INC109843323381 7,497.75 
NILA J NIELSEN106326323382 188.00 
NOBBIES INC069675323383 131.58 
NOVA HEALTH EQUIPMENT COMPANY069930323384 23.92 
NOVEL UNITS INC069936323385 208.90 
NOVELL INC099567323386 2,600.00 
ANNE M OETH050042323388 286.62 
OFFICE DEPOT  84133510100013323392 13,529.20 
OLSSON ASSOCIATES INC136898323394 8,861.03 
OMAHA PAPER COMPANY INC.070700323395 21,582.60 
OMAHA TRUCK CENTER INC071025323397 284.20 
OMAHA WORLD HERALD CO071050323398 1,995.38 
ONE SOURCE133850323399 99.00 
ORIENTAL TRADING COMPANY071138323400 49.95 
ORIZON CPAS LLC132146323401 1,285.75 
OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY107193323402 2,328.86 
ELIZABETH A PACHTA134428323403 128.06 
PAINTIN PLACE CERAMICS INC071515323404 232.80 
PAPIO TRANSPORT SCHOOL SERVICE INC138288323408 10,359.00 
JANIE L PAPP134636323409 47.94 
GEORGE PARKER137015323410 121.48 
ANDREA L PARSONS132006323411 135.66 
ANGELO D PASSARELLI108098323412 384.82 
CYNTHIA L PAVONE135569323413 42.18 
PAXTON PATTERSON LLC071850323414 376.00 
PAYFLEX SYSTEMS USA INC071891323415 4,720.00 
PATRICIA D BUFFUM131610323416 80.00 
JANET PELSTER109831323418 109.67 
HEIDI T PENKE107783323419 798.69 
PERFECTION LEARNING CORP.072200323420 1,113.42 
PETCO ANIMAL SUPPLIES STORES INC136724323421 104.97 
ANGELA J PETERSON137009323422 18.87 
VICKY L PETERSON134365323423 123.93 
SHEILA M PHELPS072382323424 34.17 
MARY J PILLE130721323425 508.87 
PITNEY BOWES PRESORT SERVICES INC073040323426 20,000.00 
PITSCO INC072760323427 3,085.70 
PEAK INTERESTS LLC137884323428 89.40 

17



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  May 2, 2011

Date: 4/27/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
PLAYTIME EQUIPMENT & SCHOOL SUPPLY072850323430 47.86 
MELISSA J POLONCIC136003323431 396.60 
POPPLERS MUSIC INC072900323432 202.48 
PORTER TRUSTIN CARLSON073010323433 415.00 
PRAIRIE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY073210323434 2,834.10 
PREMIER AGENDAS INC072349323435 499.84 
CHRISTINA PREUSS109845323436 79.59 
PRIME COMMUNICATIONS INC134598323437 358.63 
PRO-ED INC073427323438 128.70 
PRODUCTION DEVELOPMENT ASSOC INC135213323439 138.94 
PSAT/NMSQT071372323440 150.00 
MICHAEL T QUINT136035323441 53.08 
RALSTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS078250323442 78,910.57 
RAWSON & SONS ROOFING, INC.078420323443 64,220.00 
BETHANY B RAY109810323444 170.85 
REALLY GOOD STUFF INC100642323446 569.97 
MATTHEW K REGA133191323447 18.72 
JENNIFER L REID134858323448 63.70 
REMEDIA PUBLICATIONS078958323449 69.96 
TRENT RENKEN138302323451 55.16 
MATT RESOURCES INC100813323453 47.37 
KIMBERLI R RICE109192323455 108.73 
WILLIAM S RITCHIE137334323456 65.20 
RIVERSIDE TECHNOLOGIES INC136847323457 1,580.00 
PAIGE E ROBERTS138312323458 88.54 
DALE H ROBINSON079295323459 54.98 
LILIANA J MIRANDA-ROBLES136190323460 77.76 
ROCKBROOK CAMERA CENTER079310323461 620.00 
EDWARD V ROCKWELL131723323462 67.37 
LINDA A ROHMILLER134882323463 22.44 
EILEEN A RONCI134081323464 259.08 
JEAN M RUCHTI072286323467 182.07 
GINA RUMA130940323468 55.16 
RURAL METRO MEDICAL SERVICES133572323469 1,360.00 
KATHRYN  I RYAN130477323470 31.62 
THOMAS J RZEMYK136595323471 150.96 
S & W FENCE COMPANY079685323472 3,659.20 
SAGE PUBLICATIONS, INC.081491323473 1,809.98 
LEONARD E SAGENBRECHT081495323474 23.05 
SAM'S CLUB DIRECT081630323475 50.83 
KIMBERLEY K SAUM-MILLS081725323476 115.99 
RYAN D SAUNDERS133389323477 475.30 
BRENT J SCHADE109806323478 63.34 
SCHEMMER ASSOCATES INC081880323479 2,630.00 
KELLI J SCHINSTOCK106432323480 70.38 
SHELLEY L SCHMITZ137012323481 32.44 

18



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  May 2, 2011

Date: 4/27/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
SCHOLASTIC INC082100323482 3,047.34 
SCHOOL HEALTH CORPORATION082200323484 315.53 
SCHOOL SOCIAL WORK ASSN OF NE130044323486 40.00 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC082350323488 1,903.93 
SCIENCE KIT & BOREAL LABS LLC082475323489 143.40 
SEARCH INSTITUTE130851323490 103.49 
SECURITY BENEFIT LIFE INS CO098765323491 369,918.23 
SECURITY BENEFIT LIFE INS CO098765323492 3,038.88 
SECURITY EQUIPMENT INC082910323493 5,196.10 
KELLY M SELTING082941323494 117.30 
SERVPRO OF SOUTHWEST OMAHA138499323495 692.68 
SHARED MOBILITY COACH INC133498323496 3,596.00 
AMY L SHATTUCK109800323497 7.48 
LARIA K SHEA137697323498 348.02 
SHEPPARD'S BUSINESS INTERIORS083175323499 4,246.81 
SHIFFLER EQUIPMENT SALES, INC.083188323500 72.00 
LAURA A SIEBENBORN133121323501 45.98 
SIEMENS INDUSTRY INC.131887323502 4,029.00 
SIGN SOLUTIONS INC133575323503 18.00 
SILVERSTONE GROUP INC132590323505 13,023.00 
SIMPLEXGRINNELL083400323507 946.94 
SKATELAND 132ND INC132108323508 132.00 
SMARTERVILLE EDUCATIONAL LLC084900323509 12,008.00 
SMILE MAKERS INC.099592323510 103.81 
LORI L SMITH138275323511 19.89 
BRENT D SNOW137828323512 107.10 
CHARLENE S SNYDER107093323513 43.04 
TURCO INC138623323514 240.00 
SOCIAL STUDIES SCHOOL SERVICE083950323515 848.02 
SOFTCHOICE CORPORATIONF03032323516 4,520.40 
LINCOLN OFFICE EQUIPMENT109793323517 353.62 
DELORA K SORENSON135543323518 50.01 
SOUTH/SOUTHWEST YMCA100421323519 168.00 
SOUTHPAW ENTERPRISES INC102046323520 282.61 
STANDARD STATIONERY SUPPLY CO084415323521 498.00 
STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERCIAL INC137481323522 755.77 
JULIE A STEDNITZ136440323524 29.38 
STENHOUSE PUBLISHERS131099323525 72.00 
CYNTHIA F STIGGE084630323527 29.38 
SUSAN STODDARD138276323530 34.68 
MEGAN K STUMP137867323531 501.15 
BRIAN WOLF136060323533 517.00 
SUPER DUPER INC084930323534 383.18 
SUPER SAVER #20102869323535 468.70 
JAMES V SUTFIN084959323536 129.40 
JULIANNE SVINGEN134389323537 628.25 

19



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  May 2, 2011

Date: 4/27/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
SWANDA BUSINESS FORMS130911323538 1,435.59 
JAMES D SWITZER132417323539 31.11 
SYSCO LINCOLN INC099302323540 791.52 
TARGET088654323541 954.27 
DRAPHIX, LLC103050323543 295.98 
CHILDCRAFT EDUCATION CORPORATION132962323544 38.80 
AMERICAN EAGLE COMPANY INC088709323545 819.61 
TEACHING STRATEGIES INC132974323546 347.03 
TENNANT SALES & SERVICE COMPANY133969323547 1,184.10 
THERAPRO INC102822323548 1,717.61 
THINK SOCIAL PUBLISHING INC137397323549 101.00 
ANNETTE J THOMAS136381323550 18.36 
PEGGI S TOMLINSON136578323552 44.63 
TOOL SHED INC089572323553 197.00 
TOSHIBA AMERICA INFO SYS INC131446323554 3,117.89 
TOSHIBA AMERICA INFO SYS INC131446323555 26,430.00 
TOTAL MARKETING INC089574323556 621.00 
TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES132138323557 528.26 
TRADE WELL PALLET INC108055323558 1,000.00 
BRYAN TRAN137829323559 60.20 
TRANSWORLD SYSTEMS INC138478323560 279.72 
KIMBERLY P TRISLER107719323561 58.65 
TRITZ PLUMBING, INC.106493323562 645.41 
LYNNE A TRUMAN132268323563 48.96 
TY'S OUTDOOR POWER & SERVICE INC135505323564 76.74 
TYCON ELECTRIC INC135716323565 1,100.00 
JEAN R UBBELOHDE131819323566 168.81 
UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA AT OMAHA068840323568 40.00 
UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA MED CENTER068875323569 1,375.00 
UNIVERSITY OF NEBRASKA-LINCOLN100096323570 706.33 
US TOY CO/CONSTRUCTIVE PLAYTHINGS090632323573 102.97 
UTILITY TRENCHING INC137707323574 1,691.00 
DAWN R WAGNER138311323577 19.38 
BARBARA N WALLER093008323578 67.42 
RONALD J WALSH II136166323579 45.00 
LINDA WALTERS131112323580 49.32 
WARD'S NATURAL SCIENCE EST LLC093650323581 24.65 
WATKINS CONCRETE BLOCK CO. INC.093772323582 189.00 
ADAM WEAVER138625323583 55.16 
HEIDI J WEAVER133438323584 77.32 
BECKY S WEGNER093978323585 110.62 
CHERA A WENZL131142323587 17.70 
WEST MUSIC COMPANY094174323588 906.01 
CAROL M WEST107563323589 84.76 
WESTSIDE COMMUNITY SCHOOLS094650323590 1,187.50 
CRAIG T WHALEY134658323591 147.27 

20



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  May 2, 2011

Date: 4/27/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
DEBBY A WHITAKER094751323592 160.40 
WHITE WOLF WEB PRINTERS INC137878323593 457.00 
CHRISTINA L WILCOXEN136162323594 432.26 
WILLIAM V MACGILL & CO102785323595 209.89 
STACIE A WITHERSPOON136323323596 41.97 
CRAIG J WOLF109073323597 117.81 
SUSAN J WOOSTER130716323598 39.93 
GLEN E WRAGGE095491323599 304.73 
WT COX SUBSCRIPTIONS INC100578323600 19.14 
WURTH BAER SUPPLY CO109852323601 33.05 
XEROX CORPORATION (LEASES)095674323602 6,536.07 
JEFFREY YOST138356323603 22.08 
CHAD R ZIMMERMAN137020323604 165.24 
MAUREEN ZOHLEN136468323605 53.94 

2,197,028.03 Total for GENERAL FUND
ABBOTT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL01014422996 14.40 
ACKERMAN ELEMENTARY13503322997 62.75 
ALDRICH ELEMENTARY13503422998 77.74 
ANDERSEN MIDDLE SCHOOL06542522999 1,922.89 
BEADLE MIDDLE SCHOOL13067423000 2,362.44 
BLACK ELK ELEMENTARY13503523001 51.42 
BRYAN ELEMENTARY13503623002 81.60 
CENTRAL MIDDLE SCHOOL06542023003 1,981.78 
CODY ELEMENTARY13503823004 24.00 
COTTONWOOD ELEMENTARY13317823005 40.80 
DISNEY ELEMENTARY13503923006 134.41 
EZRA ELEMENTARY13259123007 108.00 
HARVEY OAKS ELEMENTARY13504023008 85.06 
HITCHCOCK ELEMENTARY13504123009 88.80 
HOLLING HEIGHTS ELEMENTARY13169423010 125.13 
KIEWIT MIDDLE SCHOOL13428423011 2,256.89 
MILLARD HORIZON HIGH SCHOOL13505023012 1,300.89 
MILLARD NORTH HIGH SCHOOL06543823013 25,538.89 
MILLARD SCHOOLS ADMIN ACTIVITY FUND06541023014 99.15 
MILLARD SOUTH HIGH SCHOOL06544023015 21,006.89 
MILLARD WEST HIGH SCHOOL06544323016 23,203.56 
MONTCLAIR ELEMENTARY13504223017 116.19 
MORTON ELEMENTARY13337023018 64.97 
NEIHARDT ELEMENTARY SCHOOL13239823019 150.00 
NORRIS ELEMENTARY13504323020 136.00 
NORTH MIDDLE SCHOOL13009123021 2,090.00 
REAGAN ELEMENTARY13684123022 69.60 
REEDER ELEMENTARY13504423023 52.85 
ROCKWELL ELEMENTARY13504523024 95.20 
ROHWER ELEMENTARY13504623025 29.45 
RUSSELL MIDDLE SCHOOL13161523026 2,182.44 

21



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  May 2, 2011

Date: 4/27/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
SANDOZ ELEMENTARY13504723027 42.79 
UPCHURCH ELEMENTARY13724523028 16.80 
WHEELER ELEMENTARY13504823029 76.31 
WILLOWDALE ELEMENTARY13504923030 88.35 
WRIGHT EXPRESS FINANCIAL SVCS CORP13849623031 79.36 
ANGELA M LEUSCHEN13763323032 6.12 
NEXTEL PARTNERS INC10984323033 214.98 
OFFICE DEPOT  8413351010001323034 138.58 
BARBARA J SHIFFERMILLER13204723035 24.23 

86,241.71 Total for FOOD SERVICE 
FUND

A & D TECHNICAL SUPPLY CO INC010040323008 291.60 
COMMUNICATION SERVICES INC.106902323100 9,028.40 
DONOVAN PROPERTIES LLC136245323141 1,662.62 
HEWLETT PACKARD CO132423323222 1,029.92 

12,012.54 Total for SPECIAL BUILDING 
FUND

SUE Z. BEERS130625322999 3,500.00 
SAM'S CLUB DIRECT081630323004 36.84 
YOUTH FRONTIERS INC135890323007 750.00 
AMSAN LLC069689323022 169.47 
ASCD (MATERIALS)013496323032 149.00 
BARNES & NOBLE BOOKSTORE099646323041 88.53 
BUREAU OF EDUCATION & RESEARCH020550323067 199.00 
DISCOUNT SCHOOL SUPPLY099552323137 1,606.95 
EARLY CHILDHOOD TRAINING CENTER036510323151 600.00 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3037525323154 1,250.00 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICE UNIT #3037525323155 1,000.00 
FAT BRAIN TOYS LLC137477323171 116.80 
IDEAS UNLIMITED SEMINARS INC137804323235 398.00 
KAPLAN EARLY LEARNING CO056215323270 45.94 
NICOLE KELLER138618323272 199.00 
KIEWIT MIDDLE SCHOOL134284323277 150.00 
LAIDLAW TRANSIT INC058755323294 1,897.24 
LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS099217323295 670.39 
LAURITZEN BOTANICAL GARDENS131892323302 100.00 
MATHESON TRI-GAS INC059560323313 1,400.00 
MIDWEST CRANE SERVICE LLC138611323347 675.00 
MINDWARE100316323357 415.47 
NASCO067000323367 192.47 
NOVEL UNITS INC069936323385 193.04 
OFFICE DEPOT  84133510100013323392 304.51 
ORIENTAL TRADING COMPANY071138323400 45.95 
PEARSON EDUCATION082652323417 577.70 
PLASMACAM CUTTING SYSTEM131823323429 7,751.52 
RENAISSANCE LEARNING INC.099940323450 427.57 
RESOURCES FOR EDUCATORS101018323452 581.00 

22



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  May 2, 2011

Date: 4/27/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
OMAHA THEATER CO FOR YOUNG PEOPLE071023323465 720.00 
SAM'S CLUB DIRECT081630323475 193.60 
SCHOLASTIC INC082100323482 708.00 
SCHOOL NURSE SUPPLY135488323485 49.65 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC082350323488 25.56 
SCIENCE KIT & BOREAL LABS LLC082475323489 104.02 
SIGNAL 88 SECURITY GROUP LLC138176323504 476.00 
SIMON & SCHUSTER INC138622323506 778.84 
UNL EXTENSION IN DOUGLAS/SARPY CO100923323571 210.00 

28,757.06 Total for GRANT FUND
COVENTRY HEALTH & LIFE INS CO136587322976 5,000.00 
COVENTRY HEALTH & LIFE INS CO136587323105 145,293.24 

150,293.24 Total for 
ALL MAKES OFFICE EQUIPMENT011051323018 951.63 
BUSINESS MEDIA INC099431323070 276.00 
HEWLETT PACKARD CO132423323222 189.00 
INNOVATIVE LABORATORY SYSTEMS INC101435323240 10,490.00 
LEGO EDUCATION NORTH AMERICA106469323306 205.38 
METAL DOORS & HARDWARE COMPANY INC064600323342 1,300.00 
NEBRASKA FURNITURE MART INC068445323375 193.00 
S & W FENCE COMPANY079685323472 1,623.00 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC082350323488 778.50 
SHEPPARD'S BUSINESS INTERIORS083175323499 1,272.46 
VIRCO INC092323323575 2,041.20 

19,320.17 Total for DEPRECIATION 
FUND

DARREL DRAPER107948322978 75.00 
BRUCE B JUNEK135411322979 575.00 
DENA BIELSKI137705322981 80.00 
JENNA HAMMOND138016322982 80.79 
AMAZON.COM INC107651323020 155.52 
GARRETT ASHBY138007323031 140.00 
MADISON BESCH138151323051 140.00 
BOUND TO STAY BOUND BOOKS INC019559323060 690.32 
MEHGAN CAIN138599323073 127.50 
CDW GOVERNMENT, INC.133589323081 492.00 
COMMONWEALTH ELECTRIC130646323099 532.70 
HEIDI DEMUTH138160323123 191.25 
DICK BLICK CO099220323127 702.74 
DIETZE MUSIC HOUSE INC033473323134 4,169.51 
ZACH ERIKSEN138591323165 35.00 
ROBERT W. ERLANDSON038431323166 90.00 
JUSTIN FALCK138600323169 87.50 
OLIVIA FISHER138314323180 125.00 
FLOORS INC131555323182 1,002.00 
FOLLETT LIBRARY RESOURCES041100323184 993.00 

23



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  May 2, 2011

Date: 4/27/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
TAYLOR GILROY138064323192 140.00 
GREENWOOD PUBLISHING GROUP INC048517323218 42.90 
HEWLETT PACKARD CO132423323222 25.00 
MEGAN C HINGER138065323223 120.00 
HOBBY LOBBY STORES INC048940323226 200.27 
KAREN ILLG135517323237 168.00 
IXL LEARNING INC138560323244 299.00 
JOHN T DEANS137037323253 995.00 
KAYLEE JOBEUN138370323258 140.00 
CAROLINE PEYTON JONES138606323265 30.00 
BRAMSTRONG KIM138159323278 125.00 
LAURA KUHN137046323289 30.00 
LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS099217323295 151.60 
SAMANTHA LAU138592323301 60.00 
ALLY LEMKAU138627323307 42.50 
JENNA KAYE LEMKAU138013323308 127.50 
KELLI MATZA138620323327 3,100.00 
EMILY MCCOY138066323331 140.00 
KATHERINE MCGINN138156323333 30.00 
MIDLAND COMPUTER INC102870323346 383.81 
SATURNRINA LEE MORRIS137111323360 125.00 
NEBRASKA EDUCATIONAL TECH ASSN100216323374 885.00 
NEBRASKA LIBRARY ASSOCIATION099750323376 121.00 
GISELLE NEVAREZ138310323379 140.00 
ERIN OELTJEN137588323387 140.00 
OFFICE DEPOT  84133510100013323392 -4.01 
CAHNER JALINE OLSON138012323393 125.00 
OMAHA SYMPHONY134051323396 525.50 
JERRY REA130904323445 42.00 
REALLY GOOD STUFF INC100642323446 109.10 
JACQUELINE REYES138179323454 60.00 
ROCKBROOK CAMERA CENTER079310323461 917.50 
OMAHA THEATER CO FOR YOUNG PEOPLE071023323465 2,670.25 
RYAN M ROTHMAN138595323466 120.00 
S & W FENCE COMPANY079685323472 1,219.00 
BAILEY SCHOLLMEYER136895323483 140.00 
SCHOOL SPECIALTY INC082350323488 50.40 
JAKE STAUFFER136465323523 140.00 
STEVEN W LEHR138020323526 160.00 
BROOKE STILMOCK138198323528 120.00 
ANDREW STIVERS137761323529 60.00 
SUMMIT LEARNING084781323532 28.50 
JACLYN MARIE TAYLOR138602323542 47.50 
CHILDCRAFT EDUCATION CORPORATION132962323544 33.46 
KACY THURMAN138067323551 60.00 
UNITED ART AND EDUCATION099268323567 119.96 

24



Millard Public Schools
Check Register

Prepared for the Board Meeting of  May 2, 2011

Date: 4/27/2011

Check No Vend No Vendor Name Amount
SPORT SUPPLY GROUP INC090440323572 163.79 
US TOY CO/CONSTRUCTIVE PLAYTHINGS090632323573 30.45 
ANNA WAGEMANN138371323576 30.00 
AMANDA WEIHL135522323586 140.00 
WEST MUSIC COMPANY094174323588 1,570.76 

26,925.57 Total for ACTIVITY FUND
SUE Z. BEERS130625322999 -140.00 

-140.00 Total for 

2,520,438.32 Report Total               

25



4/26/2011 5/2/2011 5/2/2011

Lot Quantity
1 20
2 4
3 1
4 2
5 24
6 1
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

electrical testers
audio mixing board
mic stands
ball caps
2002 Ford Econoline Van

BOE Packet Due Date: BOE Meeting Date: Sale or Disposals Scheduled After:

Millard Public Schools - Planned Disposition of Surplus Property 

Description
laptop computers

26



27



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Reduction of Board Applications 

 

MEETING DATE:    May 2, 2011 

 

DEPARTMENT:  Board of Education 

 

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:  If the number of applicants exceeds five, the Board will 

be called upon to reduce the total number of applicants to five finalists.  The applicants are: 

 

 1.  Todd Clarke 

 2.  Scott Gray 

 3.  Thomas Marble 

 4.  Paul Meyer 

 5.  James Ritter 

 6.  Michael Stopek 

 7.  Chad Wilson 

 

ACTION DESIRED:  Reduce to five applicants. 

 

BACKGROUND:   Pursuant to Rule 9100.1 if there are more than five applicants it will be 

necessary to reduce the applicants down to five. 

 

OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVE CONSIDERATIONS:  

RECOMMENDATIONS:  Reduce the applications down to five. 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:   

 

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION OR REJECTION:   

 

TIME LINE:    

 

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Board of Education 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:  ____________________________________ 

28

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Policy 3122 – Support Services – Business – Procurement Cards 

 

MEETING DATE: May 2, 2011 and May 16, 2011 

 

DEPARTMENT: General Administration 

 

TITLE & BRIEF 

DESCRIPTION: Policy 3122 – Support Services –Business – Procurement Cards:  The approval of 

a policy authorizing the use of procurement cards in the District. 

 

ACTION DESIRED: Approval      x        Discussion             Information Only                                      .       

 

BACKGROUND: Outside consultants were recently engaged to conduct a study of the District’s 

purchasing processes and procedures.  One of the recommendations made by the 

consultants was that the District use procurement cards to reduce the cost of 

processing payments for small transactions and to facilitate purchases where 

traditional purchase orders are not accepted. 

 

 Proposed Policy 3122 authorizes the use of procurement cards in the District with 

the issuance and use of such cards subject to procedures promulgated by the 

superintendent (or designee). 

 

 The procurement card procedures have been drafted and are attached for your 

review.  You will also note that training is required for all cardholders.  Each card 

holder must receive a perfect score on the assessment contained in the training 

before he/she is issued a card. 

  

OPTIONS AND 

ALTERNATIVES: n/a 

 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that (after second reading) Policy 3122 – Support Services – 

Business – Procurement Cards be approved as submitted. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

REFERENCE: n/a 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF 

ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 

 

TIMELINE: Immediate 

 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S 

APPROVAL: __________________________ 

29

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Support Services – Business 
 
Procurement Cards  3122 
 
 
Procurement cards may be used for purchases made on behalf of the District.  The issuance and 
use of such procurement cards shall be subject to the procedures promulgated by the 
superintendent (or designee). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy Adopted:  May 16, 2011  Millard Public Schools 
 Omaha NE 
 
 

30



 

 Page 1 of 4 

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
 
 

Procedures for  
Procurement Cards 

(P-Card) 
 
 

1.0 Definitions 

1.1 “Credit card” shall mean a bank card that permits the named holder to 
purchase goods on account. 

1.2 “Procurement card” (a/k/a “P-Card) shall mean a credit card that may have 
programmed  limitations with regard to the total dollar amount or with 
regard to approved vendors or merchandise that may be purchased on 
account. 

2.0 Persons Authorized 

2.1 The superintendent shall be the only person authorized to have a District 
credit card that does not have the limitation capabilities of a procurement 
card. 

2.2 The following personnel may be authorized to use a District procurement 
card: 

2.2.1 Members of the Superintendent’s Executive Committee 

2.2.2 Building Principals 

2.2.3 Athletic Directors 

2.2.4 Others as approved by the Superintendent (or Designee). 

3.0 Authorization Process 

3.1 Any request to be authorized to carry and use a District procurement card 
shall be submitted on the Cardholder Application Form found on the 
intranet under Business Office > Documents > Accounts Payable > 
Procurement Cards.  The request for authorization shall be signed by both 
the requestor and his/her supervisor. 

3.2 Any person authorized to carry and use a District procurement card must 
satisfactorily completed the Business Office required training before being 
issued such card.  Additionally, any administrator who intends to have a 
secretary or other person designated to assist him/her with the 
requirements related to p-cards must have his/her secretary satisfactorily 
complete the training as well. 

4.0 P-Card vs. Purchase Order 

31



 

 Page 2 of 4 

4.1 All purchases of $200 or less should be made on a p-card.  (This may not 
always be possible, especially in cases where the vendor does not accept 
credit cards.) 

4.2 “Blanket Purchase Orders” will no longer be used in the District. 

5.0 Documentation and Submission 

5.1 All purchases on a District procurement card must be properly 
documented as follows:  [Note:  More specific information, including 
screen shots, related to this section can be accessed on the intranet at 
Business Office > Documents > Accounts Payable > Procurement Cards 
> P-Card Documentation] 

5.1.1 Complete Online Statement:  The P-card statement is available 
online on the 28th day of each month.  Access the statement online 
and enter the required information for the description and budget 
code.  

5.1.2 Print Online Statement:  The card holder (or designee) shall print 
the online statement after entering the budget code and transaction 
description. 

5.1.3 Attach Documentation to Statement:  Each card holder shall attach 
original receipts (or confirmation sheets for online purchases) for 
all charges.  If a packing slip, shipping confirmation, or other such 
document is received with the order, attach such documentation as 
well. 

5.1.4 Submit Statement and Documentation:  The above documentation 
shall be submitted to the Business Office on or before the 5th day 
of each month.  Such documentation shall carry the approval 
signatures of both the cardholder and his/her supervisor. 

5.2 Any issues related to the purchase (e.g., damaged goods, back orders, 
delivery, etc.) must be addressed by the cardholder – not the District’s 
purchasing and receiving departments or the Business Office. 

5.2.1 P-card purchases must be delivered to the cardholder’s building.  If 
it is desired that a delivery be made to the warehouse, the purchase 
needs to be made on a purchase order rather than a p-card. 

5.3 The cardholder should verify that the vendor is not charging Nebraska 
sales tax on the purchase. 

5.3.1 Note:  The p-card will have the District’s state tax exempt number 
displayed on its face.  Occasionally, the vendor resists granting the 
exemption.  If this occurs, continue with the purchase but notify 
the Business Office of such.  The Business Office will work with 
the vendor to ensure that future purchases are not subjected to the 
tax. 

32



 

 Page 3 of 4 

5.3.2 Note:  Nebraska schools are NOT exempt from sales tax in other 
states.  Therefore, a purchase in Council Bluffs will be subject to 
Iowa sales tax. 

5.3.3 Note:  Internet purchases are exempt from sales tax at this time. 

6.0 Unauthorized Charges: 

6.1 The following charges to a procurement card are prohibited (this is not an 
all-inclusive list): 

6.1.1 Any expenses that are not for school business purposes or are not 
reasonable or necessary 

6.1.2 Gift certificates, gift cards, or cash advances 

6.1.3 Alcoholic beverages, tobacco products, or lottery tickets 

6.1.4 Fuel  

6.1.5 Meals  

6.1.6 Purchases that the cardholder wants charged to a future budget 
year (e.g., a p-card purchase prior to July 28, 2011 cannot be 
charged to the 2011-12 budget year because the p-card bill will be 
paid in August (i.e., the last month of the 2010-11 budget year). 

6.1.7 Personal services provided by individuals or Limited Liability 
Corporations (LLC) 

6.1.8 Purchases of computers, monitors, printers, or other devices that 
will be connected to the District’s network unless prior approval 
has been received from the technology division. 

6.1.9 Purchases of appliances, furniture, file cabinets, book shelves, 
storage units, etc. unless prior approval has been received from the 
purchasing department. 

6.1.10 Purchases of office equipment and/or supplies other than through 
the District’s approved single-source vendor unless prior approval 
has been received from the purchasing department.  [Note: As of 
May 1, 2011, the District does not have a single-source vendor, so 
this section is not active at this time.  When such single-source 
arrangements are made, all cardholders will be notified.] 

6.2 Using a P-card for unauthorized purchases may result in any or all of the 
following: 

6.2.1 Revocation of the cardholder’s privileges 

6.2.2 Reimbursement of the expense of the purchase to the District 

6.2.3 Disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment 

7.0 Termination of Privileges 

33



 

 Page 4 of 4 

7.1 Failure to submit appropriate documentation for monthly charges on a 
procurement card within the time constraints noted herein above shall 
result in a temporary or permanent termination of card privileges. 

7.2 Notwithstanding the above, the authorization to use a procurement card 
may be rescinded at anytime for any reason or no reason at all by the 
Superintendent (or designee). 

8.0 Exceptions 

8.1 Any exceptions to the provisions in these procedures may only be granted 
in writing by the superintendent (or designee). 

9.0 Lost & Stolen Cards 

9.1 If a p-card is lost or stolen, the cardholder shall call the Business Office as 
soon as possible to report such.  On nights and/or weekends when the 
Business Office is not open, the cardholder should call his/her supervisor 
or Ken Fossen (Associate Superintendent for General Administration). 

10.0 Termination of Employment 

10.1 When a cardholder retires, resigns, or otherwise terminates employment 
with the District, the supervisor shall secure the employees card and 
submit it to the Business Office. 

34



AGENDA  SUMMARY  SHEET 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Rule 3811.1 – Support Services – Transportation – Student – Regular Education 

 

MEETING DATE: May 2, 2011 

 

DEPARTMENT: General Administration 

 

TITLE & BRIEF 

DESCRIPTION: Rule 3811.1 – Support Services – Transportation – Student – Regular Education:  

A revision of transportation services commencing with the 2011-12 school year 

 

 

ACTION DESIRED: Approval      x        Discussion             Information Only                                      .       

 

BACKGROUND: In our discussion related to budget reductions for the 2011-12 school year, we 

presented a $400,000 proposal that would reduce some bus services at the 

elementary level (i.e., implement a “soft mile rule”) and would increase the price 

of partial-pay bus services for middle school students.  (Note:  High school 

transportation is full-pay through First Student Bus Services.) 

 

 For more specific information, please see the following attachments: 

 

1. Proposed Revised Rule 3811.1 

2. PowerPoint showing 1-mile area for elementary schools 

3. Spreadsheet showing proposed transportation areas under the 1-mile rule 

 

OPTIONS AND 

ALTERNATIVES:  
 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that (1) the proposed revisions to Rule 3811.1 be approved as 

submitted, (2) that the proposed elementary transportation service areas be 

approved as submitted, and (3) that the price for middle school partial-pay 

transportation be set at $1.50 per trip ($3.00 per day) commencing with the start of 

the 2011-12 school year. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

REFERENCE: n/a 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF 

ADOPTION/REJECTION: n/a 

 

TIMELINE: Start of the 2011-12 school year. 

 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON: Ken Fossen, Associate Superintendent (General Administration) 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S 

APPROVAL: __________________________ 

35

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Support Services – Transportation 
 
Students – Regular Education  3811.1 
 

I. The District shall provide the following student transportation services to students at the elementary school 
level: 

 
A. Any elementary students who live more than two miles from their assigned schools shall be 

provided free transportation services to such schools. There shall be no charge for such services. 
 

B. The board of education may, in its sole discretion, approve additional free transportation services 
for students who reside within two miles of their assigned school, however, there shall be no bus 
stops located within a one-mile radius of the main entrance of such elementary school.  Students 
residing within such one-mile radius may, if they so choose, walk to a regularly scheduled bus 
stop (beyond one mile) to board and ride such bus. 

  
C. The location and spacing of bus stops (consistent with the foregoing) shall be determined by the 

superintendent (or designee). 
  

D. In areas where there is no district-provided transportation service, parents may, at their expense, 
seek to contract for such services directly with the District’s contracted transportation service 
provider (or any other transportation provider). 

  
B. Any elementary student who lives in a subdivision that was assigned to a school other than its 

neighborhood school shall be provided transportation services to his/her assigned school 
provided that such services were approved by the Board of Education at the time of such 
reassignment. 

 
C. Any student who, in his/her walks to school, encounters at least three of the following five 

circumstances shall be provided transportation services at no charge: 
 

1. The student must cross a road with a speed limit of 45 mph or greater. 
 

2. The student must, due to lack of sidewalks, walk in a nonresidential street (or the 
unimproved area immediately adjacent thereto). 

 
3. The student must cross a four-lane (or more) state or federal highway or interstate 

highway. 
 

4. The student must cross one or more non-residential intersections that (a) do not have 
pedestrian crossing signs, markings, or signals, or (b) do not have sufficient visual 
range for safe pedestrian crossing. 

 
5. The student must traverse consistently high-volume roadways where temporary road 

conditions present limited walking space. 
 

II. The District shall provide the following student transportation services to students at the Middle School 
level: 

 
A. The District shall arrange transportation services for all middle school students who live more 

than two miles from their assigned schools. There shall be a charge for such transportation. The 
charge for such services shall be determined annually by the District. The charge may (but need 
not be) sufficient to recover the full cost for such services. 

 
B. No transportation services shall be arranged by the District for students living within two miles 

of their assigned schools, however, the parents of such student may, at their expense, seek to 
contract for such services with the District’s contracted transportation service provider (or any 
other transportation provider). 

36



 
C. Any middle school student who lives in a subdivision that was reassigned to another middle 

school further from the subdivision than its original school shall be provided transportation 
services to his/her assigned school provided that such services were approved by the Board of 
Education at the time of such reassignment 

 
III. The District shall provide the following student transportation services to students at the high school level: 

 
A. The District shall provide transportation services free of charge to any student who lives more 

than four miles from his/her assigned school. However, the District may, at its sole discretion, 
elect to provide mileage reimbursement to any or all such qualifying students in lieu of 
transportation. The mileage reimbursement rate for such shall be as prescribed by state law. 

 
B. B. No transportation services shall be provided by the District for students living within four 

miles of their assigned high schools, however, the parents of such students may, at their expense, 
seek to contract for such services with the District’s contracted transportation service provider 
(or any other transportation provider). 

 
IV. Unless otherwise required by law, the District shall not provide transportation services to in-district transfer 

students (i.e., those students who, at their request, are permitted to attend a school other than the school to 
which they would have been assigned based upon the location of their residence). 

 
Related Policies & Rules: 3811 
 
Policy Adopted: April 23, 2007  Millard Public Schools 
Revised:  May 2, 2011 Omaha NE 

 
 

37



School Subdivisions

Abbott None

Aldrich None

Ackerman None

Black Elk None

Bryan Meadowbrook Estates (Beyond 1 Mile)

Giles Ridge

Cather Oakbrook Meadows

Cody None

Cottonwood None

Disney None

Ezra None

Harvey Oaks Center Park/Raintree (Beyond 1 Mile)

Hitchcock None

Holling Heights None

Montclair Boys Town

Morton Armbrust Acres (Beyond 1 Mile)

Elshire Acres

The Reserve 

The North Reserve

Neihardt Rock Creek (Beyond 1 Mile)

Chalco Point (Beyond 1 Mile)

Norris Old Town Millard (Beyond 1 Mile)

The Meadows

Reagan West Bay Springs (Beyond 1 Mile)

Oakmont (Beyond 1 Mile)

Town Rank Estates (Beyond 1 Mile)

Cattail Creek (Beyond 1 Mile)

Coyote Run (Beyond 1 Mile)

2011‐12 ELEMENTARY SCHOOL TRANSPORTATION AREAS

1 of 2

38



Reeder Harrison Park Replat #4 (Beyond 1 Mile)

Sunridge (Beyond 1 Mile)

Sunridge Replat #2 (Beyond 1 Mile)

Falcon Ridge/Village @ Falcon Ridge (Beyond 1 Mile)

Rolling Meadows and Replat

Coventry

Rural Douglas County

Cottonwood Creek

Rockwell None

Rohwer None

Sandoz Southridge

Millard Highlands South #1 (Beyond 1 Mile)

Upchurch None

Wheeler None

Willowdale None

2 of 2

39



Abbott Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
No Transportation currently provided

1.0 mile 
radius

40



Ackerman Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
No Transportation currently provided

1.0 mile 
radius

41



Aldrich Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
Currently 1 Bus (South of Dodge St), all students within the 1 mile radius (-1 Bus 2011-12)

1.0 mile 
radius

2010 Non-Transported

2010  Transported

42



Black Elk Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
No Transportation currently provided

1.0 mile 
radius

43



Bryan Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
Currently 1 Bus, All other students within 1 mile radius (No changes)

1.0 mile 
radius

2010 Non-Transported

2010  Transported

Soft Mile Buffer
Some “potential” 
students

44



Cather Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
Currently 1 Bus, All other students within 1 mile radius  (No changes)

1.0 mile 
radius

2010 Non-Transported

2010  Transported

Soft Mile Buffer
Some “potential” 
students

45



Cody Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
No Transportation currently provided

1.0 mile 
radius

46



Cottonwood Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
No Transportation currently provided

1.0 mile 
radius

47



Disney Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
No Transportation currently provided

1.0 mile 
radius

48



Ezra Millard Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
No Transportation currently provided

1.0 mile 
radius

49



Harvey Oaks Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
Currently one bus, still 10 students outside the hard mile radius ( no changes 2011-12)

1.0 mile 
radius

2010 Non-Transported

2010  Transported

50



Hitchcock Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
No Transportation currently provided

1.0 mile 
radius

51



Holling Heights Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
Currently 1 Bus, all students within the 1 mile radius (-1 Bus 2011-12)

1.0 mile 
radius

2010 Non-Transported

2010  Transported

52



Montclair  Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
Currently 1 Bus, all students within the 1 mile radius (-1 Bus 2011-12)

1.0 mile 
radius

2010 Non-Transported

2010  Transported

Soft Mile Buffer
Some “potential” 
students

53



Morton Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
Currently 1 Bus, (1 Bus 2011-12) No change

1.0 mile 
radius

2010 Non-Transported

2010  Transported

Soft Mile Buffer
Some “potential” 
students

54



Neihardt  Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
Currently 1 Bus, (1 Bus 2011-12) No change

1.0 mile 
radius

2010 Non-Transported

2010  Transported

Soft Mile Buffer
Some “potential” 
students

55



Norris  Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
Currently 1 Bus, (1 Bus 2011-12) No change

1.0 mile 
radius

2010 Non-Transported

2010  Transported

2.0 mile 
radius

Soft Mile Buffer
Some “potential” 
students

56



Reagan  Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
Currently 8 Buses, (5 Bus 2011-12) -3 Buses

1.0 mile 
radius

2010 Non-Transported

2010  Transported

Soft Mile Buffer
Some “potential” 
students

57



Reeder  Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
Currently 4 Buses, (3 Bus 2011-12) -1 Bus

1.0 mile 
radius

2010 Non-Transported

2010  Transported

Soft Mile Buffer
Some “potential” 
students

58



Rockwell  Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
Currently 1 Bus, All students within 1 Mile radius (0 Bus 2011-12) -1 Bus

1.0 mile 
radius

2010 Non-Transported

2010  Transported

59



Rohwer  Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
Currently 1 Bus, All students within 1-mile radius (0 Bus 2011-12) -1 Bus

1.0 mile 
radius

2010 Non-Transported

2010  Transported

60



Sandoz  Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
Currently 2 Buses, (2 Bus 2011-12) (No Change)

1.0 mile 
radius

2010 Non-Transported

2010  Transported

Soft Mile Buffer
Some “potential” 
students

61



Wheeler  Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
No Transportation currently provided

1.0 mile 
radius

1.0 mile 
radius

62



Willowdale  Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario

1.0 mile 
radius

No Transportation currently provided
63



Upchurch  Elementary  1.0 Mile Radius Scenario
Currently 5 Buses, All students inside 1-mile radius (0 Bus 2011-12) -5 Buses

1.0 mile 
radius

64



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

AGENDA ITEM:     Policy 5410 

 

MEETING DATE:     May 2, 2010 

 

DEPARTMENT:     Pupil Services  

 

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:       Substance Use 

 

 

ACTION DESIRED:    Approval 

 

BACKGROUND:  Changes to Policy 5490 and rule 5490.1 created 

minor adjustments to this policy which also 

addresses substance abuse. Specifically, trained 

administrators may use alcohol/drug detection 

technology to screen students prior to them 

entering/exiting school related functions. 

 

 

OPTIONAL/ALTERNATIVE 

CONSIDERATIONS:    N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:    Approval 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  N/A 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION 

OR REJECTION:  Approving the updated policy will help preclude 

alcohol/drug related infractions. 

 

TIMELINE:      August 10, 2011 

 

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Dr. Kraig J. Lofquist, Director of Pupil Services 

 

EXECUTIVE  

DIRECTOR, HUMAN RESOURCES:      Dr. Jim Sutfin 

 

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:  _________________________________ 

65

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Pupil Services 

 

Substance Use 5410 
 

 

In order to ensure the highest possible standards of learning as well as the safety, health, and well-being of students, 

the District endorses a substance abuse policy which will aid students to abstain from the use of illegal drugs, 

intervene early when student use is detected, take corrective disciplinary action when necessary, and provide 

aftercare support for students. 

 

As used in this Policy "drugs” shall include tobacco, alcohol, controlled substances as defined by state law, other 

mood or behavior-affecting substances which are not taken for medical purposes, and “look-alike” drugs. 

 

I. PREVENTION 

 

The District will adopt an age appropriate developmentally based drug, tobacco and alcohol education and 

prevention program, which includes in its scope the legal, social, and health consequences of drug, tobacco 

and alcohol use and provides information and techniques for the resistance of peer pressure for use of illicit 

drugs, tobacco or alcohol.  The program shall be for all students in all grades of the schools operated and 

served by the District from the early childhood level through grade twelve (12). 

 

The District will provide students with information and activities focused on preventing students from 

using drugs.  Prevention activities will be centered around the instructional program, guidance and 

counseling, school climate, and family and community involvement. 

 

II. INTERVENTION 

 

The District shall make available to students, information about any drug, tobacco or alcohol counseling, or 

rehabilitation, or re-entry programs available to students. 

 

The District shall establish and maintain an assistance program, through a team approach, to aid students 

who are chemically involved to successfully address their harmful involvement with chemicals and to 

continue in a school program. 

 

III. DISCIPLINE 

 

The District shall notify all students that the use of illicit drugs and the unlawful possession and use of 

tobacco and alcohol are wrong and harmful. 

 

The rules established by the District shall clearly prohibit the unlawful possession and use or distribution of 

illicit drugs, tobacco and alcohol by students on school premises or as a part of any District activities and it 

shall be applicable to students in all of the schools in the District. 

 

The District shall adopt disciplinary sanctions consistent with local, state and federal laws up to and 

including expulsion and referral for prosecution of students who violate the District’s Standards of  

Student Conduct and a description of sanctions as described by the rules of the District including sanctions 

which require the completion of an appropriate rehabilitation program. 

 

Students have the right to attend school in an environment free of drugs.  Possession or use of tobacco, or 

possession, distribution or use of mood or behavior-affecting substances, alcohol, "look-a-likes” or drug 

paraphernalia, are prohibited on school grounds and at school-sponsored or school-related activities.   

 

The consequences for possession, distribution, or use of drugs, abusive chemicals, mood altering drugs, 

unauthorized medication, or possession of drug-related paraphernalia will result in disciplinary action. 

66



It is the policy of the District to take positive action through education, counseling, parental involvement, 

medical referral, and police referral where appropriate in the handling of incidents in the schools involving 

mood or behavior-affecting substances or alcohol. 

 

School property and student property may be searched by school authorities in the interest of the 

maintenance of the health and safety of students and staff, the educational process, and to further school 

purposes. 

 

Students may be subjected to alcohol and other drug screening and testing technology pursuant to District 

Policy 5490 and Rule 5490.1. 

 

IV. TREATMENT 

 

The District will work cooperatively with community treatment personnel to facilitate the educational 

program of students in treatment. 

 

V. COOPERATION PROGRAMS 

 

The District will work cooperatively with the students, parents, guardians and community treatment 

personnel, to support aftercare and post-treatment plans for students returning from treatment. 

 

VI. NOTICES 

 

The District shall provide, distribute and shall give to all students, parents and guardians a copy of the 

Standards of Student Conduct and the statement of disciplinary sanctions enacted pursuant to this Policy 

and shall notify parents, guardians and students that compliance with the Standards of Student Conduct are 

mandatory for all the students in the District. 

 

Related Policies and Rules:  5410.1, 5480, 5480.1, 5490, 5490.1 

 

 

Legal Reference:  Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-254 et seq. 

 Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-265 

  Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-267 (6) 

  Neb. Rev. Stat. § 79-293 

 

 

Policy Approved: July 16, 1990 Millard Public Schools 

Revised:  July 6, 1998; September 25, 2000, May 16, 2011 Omaha, Nebraska 

Reaffirmed:  April 19, 2010 

67



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

AGENDA ITEM:     Policy 5480 and Rule 5480.1 

 

MEETING DATE:     May 2, 2011 

 

DEPARTMENT:     Pupil Services  

 

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:       Search and Seizure 

 

 

ACTION DESIRED:    Approval 

 

BACKGROUND:  Changes to Policy 5490 and Rule 5490.1 created 

necessary changes to our “search and seizure” 

policy and rule. Specifically, trained administrators 

may use alcohol/drug detection technology to 

screen students prior to them entering/exiting school 

related functions. 

 

OPTIONAL/ALTERNATIVE 

CONSIDERATIONS:    N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:    Approval 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  N/A 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION 

OR REJECTION:  Approving the updated policy and rule will help 

preclude alcohol/drug related infractions. 

 

TIMELINE:      August 10, 2011 

 

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Dr. Kraig J. Lofquist, Director of Pupil Services 

 

EXECUTIVE  

DIRECTOR, HUMAN RESOURCES:      Dr. Jim Sutfin 

 

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:  _________________________________ 

68

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Pupil Services  

 

Search and Seizure          5480 
 

 

Certificated staff members are permitted to search students or students' possessions whenever there is a reasonable 

suspicion that the student has in the student's possession illegal, dangerous or any other object the possession of 

which is contrary to District Ppolicy, governing law, or when necessary for the welfare and well-being of students, 

the protection of District property, or the administration of District Ppolicy. 

 

School lockers are the exclusive property of the District and may be opened or searched by certificated staff 

members without notice and without student consent.  

 

Certificated staff members may seize and take custody of any objects or substances found during a search whenever 

such objects or substances are dangerous, contrary to law or school policy, or which may threaten the welfare of 

students, school personnel, or District property.  

 

Students may be subjected to alcohol and other drug screening and testing technology pursuant to District Policy 

5490 and Rule 5490.1. 

 

The refusal of a student to consent or submit to a reasonable search and/or to surrender objects or substances found 

as a result of such search may be grounds for discipline. 

 

Policy Approved: July 5, 1988     Millard Public Schools 

Revised: July 5, 1994; October 16, 2000; May 16, 2011  Omaha, NE 

Reaffirmed:  December 20, 2010   

69



Pupil Services  

 

Search and Seizure 5480.1 
 

 

I. General Statement.  Certificated staff are authorized to conduct searches of a student's person, clothing, 

automobile, and property under a student's control including, but not limited to, purses, handbags, book 

bags, and briefcases.  Certificated staff are also authorized to search student lockers.  Certificated staff 

may take into custody any objects or substances that are illegal under federal or state law, or in violation of 

District Policy or Rule. 

 

II. Procedures for Non-District Property.  The following procedures shall be followed with respect to searches 

and seizures under this Rule: 

 

A. Reasonable Searches Permitted.   

 

1. Searches of non-District property are to be conducted at such times and places as are 

reasonable under the circumstances.  The scope of the search shall likewise be 

reasonable. 

 

2. Searches can be made under this Rule at any place on District property, at a District 

event, or at a place under District control or sponsorship. 

 

B. Person, Clothing, Automobiles, Personal Possessions, and Field Trips. 

 

1. A search of a student's person, clothing, automobile, personal property or possessions 

will only be made if there is reasonable cause to believe that the student has possession or 

control of an illegal object or substance that is illegal under federal or state law, or in 

violation of District Policy or Rule.  

 

2. A search of the person, clothing, automobile, personal property or possessions shall be 

made, whenever practicable, by two certificated staff members.  When the search is 

made of the student's person, the search shall be conducted only by staff members of the 

same sex as the student being searched. 

 

3. Prior to leaving on a field trip or other off-campus activity sponsored or participated in by 

the District, the District may search any baggage, purses, or other containers in the 

possession of or under the control of a District student participating in the field trip or 

other off-campus activity.  In addition, students may be subjected to alcohol and other 

drug screening and testing technology pursuant to District Policy 5490 and Rule 5490.1. 

 

III. District Property:  Student Lockers.   Student lockers are the exclusive property of the District and the 

District does not relinquish its control and ownership of lockers by making them available for students.  

Student lockers are provided to students only for student convenience, and this privilege may be withdrawn 

by the District at any time.  The search and inspection of lockers and the taking into custody of objects or 

substances which are illegal or in violation of District Policy or Rule may be conducted at any time by 

certificated staff without notice and without student consent.  Whenever practicable, two certificated staff 

members shall be present at the time locker searches are conducted.   

 

IV. Alcohol and other Drug Screening and Testing Technology.   Students may be subjected to alcohol and 

other drug screening and testing technology pursuant to District Policy 5490 and Rule 5490.1. 

 

 

 

70



IV. Enforcement of this Rule.   The refusal by a student to consent to or permit a search, or the refusal to 

surrender objects or substances which are illegal or violate District Policy or Rule, may subject such student 

to suspension, expulsion, or other disciplinary action. 

 

 

VI. Law Enforcement Authorities.  Police officers and other law enforcement authorities shall be permitted to 

conduct a search of a student, the student's clothing, and the student's possessions and property on District 

property, at a District event, or at a place under District control whenever such officers or authorities: 

A. Possess a judicial order providing for the same;   

  

B. Are otherwise authorized by law to make a search; or  

 

C. Exigent circumstances exist.   

 

D. Neither school officials nor staff members shall participate directly or indirectly in any search or 

actions relating thereto conducted by a police officer or law enforcement official.   

 

 

Related Rules:   5400.1 

   5410.1 

   5490 

   5490.1 

 

 

Rule Approved:  July 13, 1988 

Revised:  July 5, 1994; June 16, 1997; October 16, 2000; May 2, 2011 

Reaffirmed:  December 20, 2010 Millard Public Schools 

 Omaha, NE 

71



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

AGENDA ITEM:     Policy 5490 & Rule 5490.1 

 

MEETING DATE:     May 2, 2011 

 

DEPARTMENT:     Pupil Services  

 

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION:       Use of Alcohol and other Drug Screening and  

                                                                        Testing Technology 

 

ACTION DESIRED:    Approval 

 

BACKGROUND:  The proposed changes would allow trained 

administrators to screen students for alcohol use 

prior to entering or leaving a school related 

function. In the past, the District has had students 

enter events under the influence which has created a 

disruption to such events. Using the updated 

technology will help continue to send a message 

that alcohol and other drug use will not be tolerated. 

 

OPTIONAL/ALTERNATIVE 

CONSIDERATIONS:    N/A 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS:    Approval 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE:  N/A 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF ADOPTION 

OR REJECTION:  Approving the updated policy and rule will help 

preclude alcohol/drug related infractions. 

 

TIMELINE:      August 10, 2011 

 

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE:   Dr. Kraig J. Lofquist, Director of Pupil Services 

 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,  

HUMAN RESOURCES:         Dr. Jim Sutfin 

 

SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL:  _________________________________ 

72

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Pupil Services  

 

Use of Alcohol and other Drug Screening and Testing Technology 5490 
 

The District will provide students with the opportunity to obtain an education and participate in school sponsored 

events and activities in a safe, healthy, and orderly environment free of alcohol and other drugs.  Accordingly, the 

District may use alcohol and other drug screening and testing technology in order to ensure a safe environment at 

school and school sponsored events and activities.  

 

The District may use such screening and testing technology with students before they may enter or exist a school 

sponsored event or activity, or prior to leaving on a field trip or other off-campus event or activity sponsored by the 

school. 

 

When reasonable suspicion exists that a student has consumed or possesses alcohol or any other type of drug in 

violation of dDistrict policy, the student will be advised of the suspicion.  As part of the investigation, dDistrict 

personnel may conduct field tests using technology available to them for the determination of whether or not a 

student has consumed is under the influence of, or in possession of alcohol or other drugs. 

 

 

 

Related Policies and Rules:  5490.1 

 

Policy Approved: March 6, 1995 Millard Public Schools 

Revised:  August 19, 1996; October 16, 2000; September 2, 2008; May 16, 2011 Omaha, Nebraska 

73



Pupil Services 

 

Use of Alcohol and other Drug Screening and Testing Technology 5490.1 

 

I. Procedures.  The following procedures govern the use of alcohol and other drug 

screening and testing technology by school administrators: 

  

 A. The District may require all students to submit to alcohol screening before they 

may enter or exist a school sponsored event or activity, or prior to leaving on a 

field trip or other off-campus event or activity sponsored by the school.  Such 

screening devices may be used to sample students' breath and any liquid-carrying 

containers.  If such screening has positive results, then there shall be a second 

screening.  If such second screening again has positive results, then there is a 

reasonable suspicion that the student has violated the District's alcohol policy and 

the student may be subjected to a field test. 

 

     A. B. Students suspected of violating the District's alcohol and other drugs policy may 

be subjected to a field test.  Refusal to consent or submit to a field test may be 

grounds for discipline. 

 

     B. C. If the student tests a field test is positive for alcohol and/or other drugs, the 

positive results will be used as evidence in any disciplinary procedures against the 

student.  

 

     C. D. Results of field tests, refusal to consent or submit to a field test, and other 

evidence will be used by the administration in determining disciplinary action.  

 

     D. E. Student field test results for alcohol or other drugs will be made available to the 

student's parents or guardian.  Screening results for students entering or existing 

school sponsored events or activities, or for students leaving on a field trip or 

other off-campus event, will not be shared with parents unless such results are 

positive. 

 

     E. F. Regardless of the results of the field test, the If a student screens or tests positive 

for alcohol or other drug use, they will be released from school or any school 

sponsored event or activity, only to the student's parents or guardian or an adult 

designated by the student's parents or guardian. 

 

     F. G. Staff, students, and parents will be notified annually of these procedures.  

 

     G. H. Field screening and testing devices will only be administered by school 

administrators appropriately trained as provided by the manufacturer of the field 

test devices. 

 

74



     H. I. Field screening and testing devices will be tested for accuracy and calibrated as 

necessary as provided by the manufacturer. 

 

II. Annual Report to Board 

A report summarizing all field screening and testing will be annually presented to the 

Board. 

 

III. Definitions 

 

 A. Screening, field screening, and screening technology shall mean a passive alcohol 

detecting device which is a non-invasive high speed instrument which can be used 

as a sniffer for overt or covert alcohol detection, which is administered for 

students entering or existing school sponsored events or activities, or for students 

leaving on a field trip or other off-campus event or activity. 

 

 B. Testing, field testing, and testing technology shall mean an active alcohol or other 

drug detecting device which is administered when there is reasonable suspicion 

that a student has violated the District's alcohol or other drug policies. 

 

 

Related Policies and Rules: 5480, 5480.1, 5490 

         

Rule Approved:   March 6, 1995 

 

Revised:   August 19, 1996; October 16, 2000; September 2, 2008; May 2, 2011 

 

 Millard Public Schools 

 Omaha, NE 

75



AGENDA ITEM:  Administrator Recommended for Hire 
 
 
MEETING DATE:  May 2, 2011 
 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Human Resources 
 
 
TITLE & DESCRIPTION:  Assistant Principal, Andersen Middle School 
 
 
ACTION DESIRED:  Approval 
 
 
BACKGROUND:  The position was advertised on Millard’s job posting website.  Ten internal and 

eight external applications were received. The applications were reviewed by Dr. 
Jim Sutfin, Dr. Keith Lutz, and Jeff Alfrey.  Four internal and two external 
candidates were interviewed for the position. The interview team included Dr. Jim 
Sutfin, Dr. Kim Saum-Mills, Dr. Nancy Johnston, Ted Esser, Ann Gapinski, 
Jeanine Beaudin, Jeff  Alfrey, Scott Eastridge, Mark Shields, Rynette Friesen, 
Diane Mynster, Chris Raabe, Nancy Wilson, Cindy Barron, Lori Mersch, and 
Cindy Murcek. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The superintendent’s recommendation is approval of Jeffrey Kerns as Assistant 

Principal at Andersen Middle School.  Mr. Kerns is currently a sixth grade teacher 
at Beadle Middle School. (2008-present)  Previously, he was a fifth grade teacher at 
Rohwer Elementary (2006-2008), and taught grade five and grade six for South 
Sioux City Public Schools. (2000-2006) 

 
 
Education:  BA – Elementary Education – Midland University (1999)  
  MA – Educational Administration – University of Nebraska, Lincoln (2005) 
 
 
OPTIONS & ALTERNATIVES: N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approval 
 
 
PERSON RECOMMENDING:  Dr. Jim Sutfin 
 
 
 
SUPERINTENDENT APPROVAL: 

76

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

Meeting Date: May 2, 2011 

Department Human Resources 

Action Desired: Approval 

Background: Personnel item:  (1) Hires; (2) Resignations 
 
Options/Alternatives  
Considered: N/A 
 
Recommendations: Approval 

Strategic Plan 

Reference: N/A 

Implications of  
Adoption/Rejection: N/A 
 
Timeline: N/A 

Responsible 
Persons: Jim Sutfin, Ed.D. 
 

 

 

 

Superintendent’s Signature: __________________________________________ 

77

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



May 2, 2011 
 

 
 

RESIGNATIONS 
 
 
Recommend:  The following resignation be accepted: 
 
1. LeAnna R. Brown – Intermediate Montessori Teacher at Montclair Elementary School.  

Resigning at the end of the 2010-2011 school year because of relocation. 
2. John T. Carroll – Computer teacher at Kiewit Middle School. Retiring at the end of the 2010-

2011 school year. 
3. Terri S. Carter – Science teacher at Millard West High School.  Resigning at the end of the 

2010-2011 school year because of relocation. 
4. Joslyn J. Darling – Foreign Language teacher at Millard South High School. Resigning at the 

end of the 2010-11 school year for another job in education. 
5. James D. Kahm – Science Teacher at Millard South High School.  Resigning at the end of 

the 2010-2011 school year for another job in education. 
6. Alicia Rodick – Grade 1 teacher at Cody Elementary School.  Resigning at the end of the 

2010-2011 school year because of relocation.  
7. Stephanie M. Schade – Grade 2 teacher at Cottonwood Elementary School.  Resigning at the 

end of the 2010-2011 school year for family reasons. 
8. Matthew S. Shrader – Industrial Tech teacher at Millard North High School.  Resigning at 

the end of the 2010-2011 school year because of relocation. 
 

78



May 2, 2011 
 

 
TEACHERS RECOMMENDED FOR HIRE 

 
 
Recommend: the following teachers be hired for the 2011/2012 school year: 
 

1. Meghan M. Gibilisco – MA – Creighton University.  Math teacher at Millard North 
High School for the 2011-2012 school year. 

2. Kristin R. Greenwald – MA – University of Nebraska, Omaha.  Language Arts 
teacher at North Middle School for the 2011-2012 school year. (Short-Term 
Contract) Previous Experience: Current CADRE Teacher for Millard Public 
Schools (2010-2011) 

3. Raymond A. LeBlanc – BA+18 – University of Nebraska, Omaha.  Business 
teacher, part-time (.5), at Horizon High School for the 2011-2012 school year. 

4. Crystal M. Moody – MA – University of Iowa.  Science teacher at Central Middle 
School for the 2011-2012 school year. 

5. Ashley L. Romshek – BA+12 – Doane College.  Special Education Resource 
teacher at Russell and Kiewit Middle Schools for the 2011-2012 school year. 

6. Megan K. Septak – BA+12 – University of Nebraska, Lincoln.  Math teacher at 
Central Middle School for the 2011-2012 school year.  Previous Experience: 
Tampa, FL (2007-current), Providence, RI (2006-2007), Millard Public Schools 
(2004-2006) 

7. Jennifer L. Smith – BA+31 – University of Nebraska, Lincoln. Science teacher 
(Grade 6) at Central Middle School for the 2011-2012 school year. 

8. Trevor Wenger – BA – Grace University.  Math/Science teacher (Grade 7) at 
Russell Middle School for the 2011-2012 school year. 

9. Susan A.Wilde – MA – University of Nebraska, Omaha.  Art teacher at Millard 
South High School for the 2011-2012 school year.  Previous Experience: St. Peter 
Claver, Omaha, NE (2008-current), Papillion-LaVista Schools (1997-2006) 
 

79



April 20, 2011

Millard Public Schools

Total Enrollment

SpEd

Cluster Current Current YTD Sept. 2010

Elementary K 1 2 3 4 5 Prgm Total Change Change Enrollment

Abbott (3 unit) 65 76 82 68 70 72 433 1 1 432
Ackerman (4 unit) 69 79 88 92 88 83 499 0 -3 502
Aldrich (3 unit) 63 91 59 65 96 71 445 1 0 445
Black Elk (4 unit) 71 85 87 96 103 88 530 0 4 526
Bryan (3 unit) 64 63 67 60 60 67 381 -2 -2 383
Cather (3 unit) 79 72 74 82 74 69 450 2 -8 458
Cody (2 unit) 30 33 29 31 40 24 22 209 -1 -2 211
Cottonwood (3 unit) 63 59 53 52 57 60 344 0 0 344
Disney (3 unit) 40 43 37 41 39 33 16 249 -4 -11 260
Ezra Millard (3 unit) 61 61 58 68 58 72 15 393 1 5 388
Harvey Oaks (2 unit) 40 51 47 43 46 56 283 1 0 283
Hitchcock (2 unit) 29 34 27 29 30 28 17 194 1 1 193
Holling Heights (3 unit) 67 59 60 60 60 68 10 384 0 6 378
Montclair (4 unit) 87 94 86 87 87 86 527 1 4 523
Morton (3 unit) 59 49 53 53 64 70 16 364 -4 2 362
Neihardt (4 unit) 79 101 82 96 104 97 559 1 -3 562
Norris (3 unit) 59 73 60 52 59 65 368 -3 2 366
Reagan (4 unit) 122 105 120 108 94 78 627 -2 -11 638
Reeder (3 unit) 98 85 68 97 84 80 19 531 -3 0 531
Rockwell (3 unit) 57 53 56 49 54 50 18 337 -1 0 337
Rohwer (3 unit) 65 76 66 81 78 82 15 463 0 1 462
Sandoz (3 unit) 53 53 52 60 39 49 306 -1 0 306
Upchurch   (3 unit) 105 112 84 71 60 43 475 0 1 474
Wheeler (4 unit) 78 92 106 101 110 111 20 618 -1 2 616
Willowdale (3 unit) 62 61 64 70 67 93 417 0 11 406
Totals 1665 1760 1665 1712 1721 1695 168 10386 -10 0 10386

SpEd Sep-10
Middle 6 7 8 Prgm* Total Change Change Enrollment

Andersen MS 229 256 265 0 750 0 2 748
Beadle MS 337 272 307 27 916 -5 -3 919
Central MS 246 248 250 23 744 -10 -6 750
Kiewit MS 289 285 310 0 884 6 6 878
North MS 241 316 253 17 810 -3 -3 813
Russell MS 282 290 281 0 853 -1 4 849
MS Alternative 6 12 13 31 8 10 21
Totals 1630 1679 1679 67 4988 -5 10 4978
High 9 10 11 12
North HS 615 615 579 539 20 2348 -18 -47 2395
South HS 492 497 466 449 29 1904 -16 -66 1970
West HS 596 554 513 467 32 2130 -3 -46 2176
Horizon HS 0 1 55 55 111 -6 -11 122
Totals 1703 1667 1613 1510 81 6493 -43 -170 6663
*Sped Program Included in MS/HS Grade Level totals Contracted SPED 48 3 8 40
HS Totals reflect early grads YTD:  MWHS 33; MHHS 31; MNHS 26; MSHS 35 Young Adult Program 46 -1 -6 52
Preschool SPED Not SPED Total Ombudsman (Primary) 22 13 -7 29
Bryan 5 31 36 Total District K-12 21983 -46 -165 22148
Cody 60 31 91 Total District PreK-12 22650 -29 -105 22755
Cody Early Start 4 9 13

Disney 18 13 31
Hitchcock 28 8 36 Elementary Elementary 10386

Holling Heights 1 29 30  Middle School 4988 Middle Sch 4978

Montclair 26 7 33 High School 6493 High Sch 6663

Montclair Montessori 0 82 82 Contracted 48 Contracted 40

Neihardt 2 35 37 Young Adult 46 Young Adult 52

Norris ELL 1 17 18 Ombudsman (Primary) 22 Ombudsman (Primary) 29
Norris Montessori 1 16 17   TOTAL 21983   TOTAL 22148

Rockwell 1 35 36
Sandoz 12 4 16
Sandoz ELL 5 30 35
Wheeler 33 9 42
Homebased Infants 114 114
TOTAL 667

Career Academies NHS SHS WHS HHS TOTAL

Culinary 7 3 5 15
Education 8 4 20 32
Entrepreneurship 3 6 7 16
Finance 3 3 0 6
Health Services 19 13 9 41
TDL 4 0 0 4
Ombudsman  (Primary and Secondary Assignment) 37

4/20/2011 9/23/2010

10386

22,025 22,171 22,148 22,151
22,117 22,109 22,037 22,029 21,995 21,983

19,000

19,500

20,000

20,500

21,000

21,500

22,000

22,500

Sep-09 Aug-10 Sep-10 10-Oct Nov-10 Dec-10 Jan-11 Feb-11 Mar-11 Apr-11

K-12 Enrollment 2010-11

80



Elementary Classroom Enrollment Class
Current Current YTD Sept. 2010 Size W/out

K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment SPED
Abbott 23 19 20 23 24 24

21 19 21 22 22 24
21 19 21 23 24 24

19 20
Total Students 65 76 82 68 70 72 433 1 1 432 433
Total Teachers 3 4 4 3 3 3 20 20
Classroom Avg 21.67 19.0 20.5 22.7 23.3 24.0 22 22

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Ackerman 19 20 19 25 24 20
17 20 16 23 22 22
15 19 18 24 19 19
18 20 17 20 23 22

18
Total Students 69 79 88 92 88 83 499 0 -3 502 499
Total Teachers 4 4 5 4 4 4 25 25
Classroom Avg 17.3 19.8 17.6 23.0 22.0 20.8 20 20

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Aldrich 22 23 20 22 24 23
21 23 20 22 24 24
20 23 19 21 25 24

22 23
Total Students 63 91 59 65 96 71 445 1 0 445 445
Total Teachers 3 4 3 3 4 3 20 20
Classroom Avg 21.0 23.0 19.7 21.7 24.0 23.7 22 22

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Black Elk 18 22 22 26 26 23
17 21 21 26 25 22
19 22 22 22 26 21
17 20 22 22 26 22

Total Students 71 85 87 96 103 88 530 0 4 526 530
Total Teachers 4 4 4 4 4 4 24 24
Classroom Avg 17.8 21.3 21.8 24.0 25.8 22.0 22 22

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Bryan 21 16 23 20 20 23
22 16 22 20 20 23
21 16 22 20 20 21

15
Total Students 64 63 67 60 60 67 381 -2 -2 383 381
Total Teachers 3 4 3 3 3 3 19 19
Classroom Avg 21.3 15.8 22.3 20.0 20.0 22.3 20 20

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 C-K C-1 C-2 C-3 C-4 C-5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Cather 17 12 15 16 14 25 24 23 24 24 22 23
14 16 13 18 15 24 21 22 24 23 21

Total Students 31 28 28 34 29 25 48 44 46 48 45 44 450 2 -8 458 450
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 23 23
Classroom Avg 15.5 14.0 14.0 16.0 14.5 25.0 24.0 22.0 23.0 24.0 22.5 22.0 20 20

SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Cody 15 16 13 17 20 24 6
15 17 16 14 20 4

12
Total Students 30 33 29 31 40 24 22 209 -1 -2 211 187
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 1 3 14 11
Classroom Avg 15.0 16.5 14.5 15.5 20.0 24.0 7.3 15 17

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Cottonwood 22 21 17 17 19 20
21 19 18 18 19 19
20 19 18 17 19 21

Total Students 63 59 53 52 57 60 344 0 0 344 344
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 18 18
Classroom Avg 21.0 19.7 17.7 17.3 19.0 20.0 19 19

SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Disney 19 14 21 19 18 17 8
21 14 16 22 21 16 8

15

Total Students 40 43 37 41 39 33 16 249 -4 -11 260 233
Total Teachers 2 3 2 2 2 2 2 15 13
Classroom Avg 20.00 14.33 18.50 20.50 19.50 16.50 8 17 18

81



Class
SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010 Size W/out

K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment SPED
Ezra Millard 20 21 19 23 20 24 7

21 20 20 23 18 24 8
20 20 19 22 20 24

Total Students 61 61 58 68 58 72 15 393 1 5 388 378
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 20 18
Classroom Avg 20.3 20.3 19.3 22.7 19.3 24.0 8 20 21

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Harvey Oaks 20 16 24 21 23 17
20 17 23 22 23 20

18 19
Total Students 40 51 47 43 46 56 283 1 0 283 283
Total Teachers 2 3 2 2 2 3 14 14
Classroom Avg 20.0 17.0 23.5 21.5 23.0 18.7 20 20

SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Hitchcock 16 17 13 15 15 28 8
13 17 14 14 15 9

Total Students 29 34 27 29 30 28 17 194 1 1 193 177
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 13 11
Classroom Avg 14.5 17.0 13.5 14.5 15.0 28.0 8.5 15 16

SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Holling Heights 23 21 21 19 19 23 6
21 18 19 21 20 22 4
23 20 20 20 21 23

Total Students 67 59 60 60 60 68 10 384 0 6 378 374
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 20 18
Classroom Avg 22.3 19.7 20.0 20.0 20.0 22.7 5.0 19 21

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 M-K M1-3 M4-5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Montclair 22 23 21 20 21 25 14 23 18
21 23 21 19 22 26 15 23 20

15 24 22
23 19
24
23

Total Students 43 46 42 39 43 51 44 140 79 527 1 4 523 527
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 6 4 25 25
Classroom Avg 21.5 23.0 21.0 19.5 21.5 25.5 14.7 23.3 19.8 21 21

SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Morton 22 21 20 17 23 24 7
17 16 19 17 21 24 9
20 12 14 19 20 22

Total Students 59 49 53 53 64 70 16 364 -4 2 362 348
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 3 2.0 20 18
Classroom Avg 19.7 16.3 17.7 17.7 21.3 23.3 8.0 18 19

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Neihardt 19 20 21 25 20 24
20 21 21 23 21 24
20 19 20 24 21 25
20 21 20 24 21 24

20 21
Total Students 79 101 82 96 104 97 559 1 -3 562 559
Total Teachers 4 5 4 4 5 4 26 26
Classroom Avg 19.8 20.2 20.5 24.0 20.8 24.3 22 22

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 M-K M1-3 M4-5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Norris 19 25 21 17 19 24 11 20 21
19 24 20 19 20 23 10 19 17

20

Total Students 38 49 41 36 39 47 21 59 38 368 -3 2 366 368
Total Teachers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 2 19 19
Classroom Avg 19.0 24.5 20.5 18.0 19.5 23.5 10.5 19.7 19.0 19 19

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Reagan 20 22 22 22 18 20
20 21 16 21 18 20
21 21 23 21 20 19
21 20 20 22 20 19
20 21 21 22 18
20 18

Total Students 122 105 120 108 94 78 627 -2 -11 638 627
Total Teachers 6 5 6 5 5 4 31 31
Classroom Avg 20.3 21.0 20.0 21.6 19.0 19.5 20 20

82



SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Reeder 20 23 23 24 23 15 9
20 21 23 25 21 20 10
20 21 22 24 25 23
20 20 24 15 22
18

Total Students 98 85 68 97 84 80 19 531 -3 0 531 512
Total Teachers 5 4 3 4 4 4 2 26 24
Classroom Avg 20.0 21.7 22.7 24.3 23.0 19.3 9.5 20 21

SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Rockwell 19 18 19 24 19 25 9
19 18 19 25 18 25 9
19 17 18 17

Total Students 57 53 56 49 54 50 18 337 -1 0 337 319
Total Teachers 3 3 3 2 3 2 2 18 16
Classroom Avg 19.0 17.7 18.7 24.5 18.0 25.0 9.0 19 20

SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Rohwer 21 20 24 21 19 20 8
21 20 19 19 21 21 7
23 19 23 20 18 21

17 21 20 20

Total Students 65 76 66 81 78 82 15 463 0 1 462 448
Total Teachers 3 4 3 4 4 4 2 24 22
Classroom Avg 21.7 19.0 22.0 20.3 19.5 20.5 8.0 19 20

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Sandoz 17 19 17 20 20 25
18 17 18 20 19 24
18 17 17 20

Total Students 53 53 52 60 39 49 306 -1 0 306 306
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 2 2 16 16
Classroom Avg 17.7 17.7 17.3 20.0 19.5 24.5 19 19

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Upchurch 22 23 21 23 21 22
20 22 20 24 20 21
21 23 21 24 19
21 21 22
21 23

Total Students 105 112 84 71 60 43 475 0 1 474 475
Total Teachers 5 5 4 3 3 2 22 22
Classroom Avg 21.0 22.4 21.0 23.7 20.0 21.5 22 22

SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Wheeler 20 21 20 21 22 23 9
20 19 20 21 19 16 6
18 16 22 18 23 26 5
20 19 22 21 23 23

17 22 20 23 23

Total Students 78 92 106 101 110 111 20 618 -1 2 616 598
Total Teachers 4 5 5 5 5 5 3 32 29
Classroom Avg 19.5 18.4 21.2 20.0 22.0 22.2 6.7 19 21

Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
K 1 2 3 4 5 Total Change Change Enrollment

Willowdale 20 21 22 24 23 23
21 20 21 23 23 23
21 20 21 23 21 23

24
Total Students 62 61 64 70 67 93 417 0 11 406 417
Total Teachers 3 3 3 3 3 4 19 19
Classroom Avg 20.7 20.3 21.3 23.3 22.3 23.3 22 22

Elementary Totals SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
Grade K 1 2 3 4 5 M-1 M-2 M-3  M-4 M-5 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment
Students 1665 1760 1665 1712 1721 1695 72 63 64 64 53 168 10386 -10 0 10386 10218
Teachers 86 87 81 78 80 74 9 6 22 523 501
Classroom Avg 19.4 20.2 20.6 21.9 21.5 22.9 7.6 19.86 20.395

SpEd Current Current YTD Sept. 2010
6 7 8 Cluster Total Change Change Enrollment

Andersen MS 229 256 265 0 750 0 2 748
Beadle MS 337 272 307 27 916 -5 -3 919
Central MS 246 248 250 23 744 -10 -6 750
Kiewit MS 289 285 310 0 884 6 6 878

North MS 241 316 253 17 810 -3 -3 813
Russell MS 282 290 281 0 853 -1 4 849
MS Alternative 6 12 13 31 8 10 21
Totals 1630 1679 1679 67 4988 -5 10 4978

9 10 11 12
North HS 615 615 579 539 20 2348 -18 -47 2395
South HS 492 497 466 449 29 1904 -16 -66 1970
West HS 596 554 513 467 32 2130 -3 -46 2176
Horizon HS 0 1 55 55 111 -6 -11 122
Totals 1703 1667 1613 1510 81 6493 -43 -170 6663

Contracted SPED 48 3 8 40
Young Adult Program 46 -1 -6 52
Ombudsman (Primary Enrollment) 22 13 -7 29
Total District Enrollment 21983 -46 -165 22148

83



 

 

AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Legislative Update 
 

MEETING DATE: May 2, 2011 
 

DEPARTMENT: Office of the Superintendent    
 

TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Legislative Update for the 102nd Legislature 1st session. 

 

ACTION DESIRED: APPROVAL          DISCUSSION          INFORMATION ONLY   XX      

 

The legislative summary is attached.   

 

 

   

 

 

 

   

RECOMMENDATION:   

 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Implemented Strategies and Superintendent’s Goals 

 

RESPONSIBLE PERSON:  Angelo Passarelli 

 

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL:                                                                  

        (Signature) 

 

 

84

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Legislative Update 

May 2, 2011 

 

The Budget 

The legislature will take up the budget from the Appropriations Committee on Monday and 

Tuesday.  They are planning to work late on Tuesday to consider the proposed budget.     

 

 

K-12 Funding  

LB 235 passed and was presented to the Governor..  This bill reduces state aid from the 

previous year by about 6.5 million for Millard.  The biggest reason for the decline is how 

instructional time is calculated.  The rules for reporting instructional time have changed and are 

less favorable to MPS.   

 

Commission of Industrial Relations 

This bill is still being discussed.  The rhetoric is intense.  Many officials are pointing fingers. I 

have not heard that this bill is on the legislative schedule yet.  Senator Lathrop has indicated 

that he is still open for good ideas to improve this bill.   

 

Learning Community - Truancy 

LB 463 changes provisions relating to truancy.  This bill has been amended several times.  We 

remain opposed to this bill although many of our objections have been addressed by several 

amendments.  This bill as amended allows for medical exceptions from excessive 

absenteeism.   

 

Learning Community – Student Records 

LB 615 and 636 changes provisions relating to access to student records - These bills remain 

in committee and I haven’t heard any word on their disposition. 

LB 53 and 572 which deal with transportation are being held in committee.  These bills are not 

likely to come out this year.     

 

A listing of bills we are tracking is attached.   

 

National News and Advocacy Issues 

FERPA Privacy Issues  

Student data privacy is not a new concern. In 1974, the Family Educational Rights and Privacy 

Act (FERPA) was created to address the issue. But as the world goes digital, data breaches 

become an everyday occurrence, and ED continues to push for data-driven decision making 

as part of its school reform movements, it’s time to give FERPA a 21st-century makeover, 

experts say.…To meet the needs of privacy in the digital era, Education Secretary Arne 

85

http://www.eschoolnews.com/?p=57145/?utm_source=website&utm_medium=shorturl&utm_campaign=StudentInformationSystemsMakingtheGrade022311_060311


Duncan is asking lawmakers to amend FERPA to ensure that ED’s implementation of the law 

“continues to protect the privacy of education records, as intended by Congress, while allowing 

for the effective use of data in statewide longitudinal data systems … as envisioned in the 

America COMPETES Act and furthermore supported under the 2009 [stimulus].” 

86



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB18 Adams Provide for distribution of allocations from the federal Education Jobs Fund Education
01/18/11
1:30 p.m. 
Room 1525

01/19/11 01/21/11 01/31/11 Passed 
02-04-11
Signed by the 
Governor 
02/10/11

Support

LB19 McCoy Prohibit the use of certain drug substances as prescribed

Adds to Schedule 1 of the controlled substances act Any material, compound, mixture, or preparation 
containing any detectable quantity of synthetically produced cannabinoids. Makes such substances 
unlawful to posses.  Punishment for such offense shall be equal to those of possession of marijuana. 

Judiciary
01/19/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1113

01/21/11 02/15/11 02/10/11 Passed w/E
02/16/11
Signed by the 
Governor 
02/23/11

Support

LB33 Louden Change valuation of agricultural and horticultural land

Beginning January 1, 2012 Ag and horticultural land shall be valued at 70 rather than 75% of its actual 
value.  Changes acceptable range for valuation from 69-75% to 64-70% of actual value.  Changes state aid 
value of ag and horticultural land to 67 rather than 72%.  

Revenue
01/21/11 
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Oppose

LB50 Krist Adopt the Elementary and Secondary Educational Opportunity Act and provide for income tax credits

Provides income tax credits for contributions to entities that provide scholarships to children attending 
privately operated elementary or secondary schools.  Scholarships can only be granted to kids of certain 
incomes. For grades K-8, the household income eligibility is three times the standard for free or reduced 
price lunch; for grades 9-12 the eligibility is increased to four times.

Revenue
02/16/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Oppose

Telephone:  402.434.3399 | Fax:  402.434.3390

MILLARD PUBLIC SCHOOLS
LEGISLATIVE SUMMARY

102nd Legislature - First Session - 2011

530 South 13th Street | Suite 110 | Lincoln, Nebraska 68508

87



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB53 Krist Change free transportation provisions relating to learning community students

Provides that Learning Community school districts must provide free transportation to students residing in 
the learning community and attending school in the school district if the student is transferring pursuant to 
the open enrollment provisions of section 79-2110 and either (i) is a
student who contributes to the socioeconomic diversity of enrollment at the school building to which he or 
she attends, transfers and lives more than one mile from the school to which he or she transfers, or (ii) is a 
student attending a focus school or program and lives more than one mile from the school building housing 
the focus school or program.

Deletes eligibility for free and reduced lunch kids who don't affect diversity of building.

Education
02/28/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Support

LB58 Adams Provide for a study of dual-enrollment courses and career academies

Provides that the Coordinating Commission for Postsecondary Education should study dual enrollment 
courses and report to the Legislature before December 15, 2011.  

Education
03/15/11
at 1:30 p.m.
room 1525

LB58 
amended into 
LB637

Support

LB84 Fischer

FISCHER 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

SPEAKER MAJOR 
PROPOSAL (2011)

Adopt the Build Nebraska Act and authorize bonds for the highway system

• The bill establishes the Build Nebraska Act and Creates the State Highway Capitol Improvement Fund for 
surface transportation projects, providing for security, investment, and repayment of bonds.  
• Funding:  ½ cent of existing sales tax for 20 years,  raising $125 million annually         
• Effective:  2013
• Funds shall be used as follows:

$60 million will be used to pay for surface transportation projects of the
                 highest priority of NDOR                
$20 million for cities and counties
$15 million for completion of expressway system
$25 million for used for payment of bonds and interest, bonding limit not to
            exceed $500 million   (Bonds must be issued between 2013 and 2018.) 

Revenue
02/10/11
at 1:30 p.m.
room 1524

02/17/11 03/25/11 04/20/11 Oppose

LB123 Heidemann Provide for disciplinary actions and policies relating to cyber-bullying

Provides that cyber-bullying shall constitute, in some cases, grounds for long-term suspension, expulsion, 
or mandatory reassignment.  Cyber-bullying means any ongoing use of electronic mail, text messaging, 
social networking web sites, or any other form of electronic communication, on or off of school grounds, 
with the intention of causing harm or serious emotional distress to students or school personnel. Requires 
school districts to develop policies concerning cyber-bullying prevention and education.

Education
01/18/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

88



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB125 Avery Create the Children's Health Advisory Committee

To create and provide duties for the Children's Health Advisory Committee, to provide duties for the chief 
executive officer of the Department of Health and Human Services and the Commissioner of Education to 
provide for and require schools to implement nutrition and physical activity standards.

Health and 
Human Services
02/10/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1510

Oppose

LB130 Heidemann Provide for adjustment of formula need in calculation of state aid to schools

Provides that for school fiscal years 2011-12 and 2012-13, if the total amount of TEEOSA Aid as 
determined by the department to be distributed to school districts is different than the total amount of funds 
appropriated for distribution, the department shall proportionally adjust each district's formula need as 
calculated pursuant to section 12 79-1007.11 so that the total amount of aid determined is equal to the 
amount of funds appropriated.

Education
01/25/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Killed 
02/17/11

Oppose

LB143 Haar Require public education institutions to file certain contracts of employment with the Nebraska 
Accountability and Disclosure Commission

Provides that public schools shall file with the Accountability and Disclosure Commission a copy of each 
contract of employment for officials of the institution with the title or function of president, vice president, 
chancellor, superintendent, assistant superintendent, chief executive officer, or chief financial officer or any 
other senior administrative personnel under contract with the institution performing similar functions. The 
contract of employment shall include the salary and benefit package provided to the official and shall 
identify each benefit provided and its source and value.

Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs
02/17/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1507

Killed 
03/09/11

Oppose

LB145 Haar Provide for school transportation safety committees

Provides for creation of school transportation safety committees and submission of child access routing 
plans for each school within a school district.  Further provides for committee procedures when a new 
school is proposed.  

Education
02/28/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB148 Avery Exclude lobbying expenses from the definition of general fund operating expenditures for state aid to 
education purposes

The one-liner says it all.

Education
01/31/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

LB148 
amended into 
LB 235

Oppose

LB149 Avery Adopt the Blind Persons Literacy Rights and Education Act

Provides that a teacher employed by or under contract with a school district, educational service unit, other 
education agency, or the State Department of Education who teaches blind or visually impaired children 
shall demonstrate competence in reading and writing Braille. Provides how such demonstration may be 
made.

Education
02/08/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

89



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB173 Avery Prohibit natural resources district board members from running for or holding more than one office

No person serving in a natural resource district shall simultaneously hold another high elective office.
 


Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs
02/02/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1507

Monitor ?

LB189 Council Adopt the Criminal Offender Employment Act

On an initial application for public employment, there shall be no question or checkbox for the applicant 
regarding the applicant's criminal record. Any criminal record of the applicant shall not operate as an 
automatic bar to otherwise qualified applicants in obtaining public employment and shall only be taken into 
consideration after the applicant has been selected as a finalist for employment. Certain criminal records 
shall not be used in connection with application for public employment.

Business and 
Labor
01/24/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 2102

Oppose

LB192 Council Require school districts to offer instruction in sexual health education

Provides that beginning with school year 2012-13, each school district must offer instruction in sexual 
health education with a curriculum pursuant to listed criteria in the bill and State Board of Education 
regulations.

Education
02/08/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB204 Council

COUNCIL 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Require blood-lead testing prior to enrollment in school

Provides that school districts shall require students to have undergone lead testing after the age of 18 
months and before the age of 4 years.  Provides for testing and notification procedures.

Education
02/08/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

03/08/11 03/28/11 04/12/11 Passed 
04/20/11
Returned by 
Governor 
without 
approval 
04/26/11

Oppose

90



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB235 Adams

ADAMS PRIORITY 
BILL (2011)

Change provisions relating to state aid to schools

     Reduces the base limitation rate for school district to 0.5% for 2011-12 and 2012-13. Elements of the 
budget lids would be permanently modified. Modifications that would reduce the total amount of state aid: 
The cost growth factor would be permanently reduced by eliminating the factor that is added on to the two 
years of basic allowable growth rates in the calculation. The upper and lower ends of the range for need 
stabilization would be reduced by 5% for 2011-12. The threshold for the averaging adjustment would also 
be reduced by 5% for 2011-12 and the additional 0.5% that is used in the calculation of the threshold would 
be permanently eliminated to reflect the change in the cost growth factor. The local effort rate would be 
increased from $1.00 to $1.025 for 2011-12 and 2012-13. The allocated income tax reduction would be 
extended for 2011-12 and 2012-13 and would be increased to $21 million. NCSA Summary.
     It is istimated that LB235 would decrease the amount of state aid distributed in FY2011-12 by $140.9 
million and the amount distributed in FY2012-13 by $172.8 million of general funds.
     Education Committee amendment:  $822 million for 2011-12. $880 million for 2012-13.

(LB148:  Exclude lobbying expenses from the definition of general fund operating expenditures for state 
aid to education purposes)
(LB273:  Change the Tax Equity and Educational Opportunities Support Act to provide for converted 
contracts and converted contract option students)
(LB287: Change provisions relating to summer school and early childhood summer sessions)

Education
01/25/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

03/28/11 04/06/11 04/13/11 Passed 
04/20/11

Signed by 
Governor 
04/26/11

LB148, 
LB273, and 
LB287 
amended into 
LB 235

Support

(LB148:  
MPS Oppose)
(LB273:
MPS Support)
(LB287:
MPS Support)

LB236 Adams Change provisions relating to state aid to schools

Reduces the base limitation rate for school district to 0% for 2011-12 and 2012-13, which would affect 
budget lids and several elements of the aid formula.  Elements of the budget lids would be permanently 
modified.  Modifications reducing total amount of state aid:  The cost growth factor would be permanently 
reduced by eliminating the factor that is added on to the two years of basic allowable growth rates in the 
calculation.  Need stabilization and the averaging adjustment would be eliminated beginning with the 2011-
12 calculation of aid.  The local effort rate would be increased from $1.00 to $1.025 for 2011-12 and 2012-
13.  The allocated income tax reduction would be extended for 2011-12 and 2012-13 and would be 
increased to $21 million. NCSA Summary.

It is estimated that LB236 would decrease the amount of state aid distributed in FY2011-12 by $184.8 
million and the amount distributed in FY2012-13 by $231.9 million of general funds.

Education
01/25/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB247 Pahls Adopt the Classrooms First Act

Requires 65% or more of each district’s total operating expenditures on direct classroom instruction 
beginning in 2012-13.  Defines what constitutes “direct classroom instruction”. Requires Commissioner of 
Education to send an “intervention team” to any district failing to comply, in order to help the school board 
and administration meet the requirements of the legislation.  Beginning in 2013-14, failure to comply for 
three consecutive years would mean loss of accreditation. NCSA Summary.

Education
01/25/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

91



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB260 Lathrop Adopt the Concussion Awareness Act

Provides that after a concussion or brain injury is sustained or suspected to have been sustained, schools are 
to prohibit athletes from playing or practicing again until they have been cleared by a health care 
professional.  Requires schools to make available training to recognize the symptoms of a concussion or 
brain injury and send out information regarding concussion and brain injury information on annual basis to 
student athletes.  Cities, villages, businesses, and non-profits who organize youth athletic activities must 
also provide information on concussions and brain injuries to participants, make available training, and 
prohibit an athlete from resuming playing or practicing after a  concussion or brain injury is sustained or 
suspected to have been sustained until cleared by a health care professional.

Health and 
Human Services
01/27/11 
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1510

02/15/11 03/09/11 03/23/11 Passed 
04/08/11
Signed by the 
Governor 
04/14/11

Support

LB266 Sullivan Change the Open Meetings Act relating to closed sessions

Provides that a public body may go into closed session for the evaluation of the job performance of a 
nonelected official or employee if such person has not requested a public meeting.  Current statute provides 
the body may go into closed session for evaluation of the job performance of a person when necessary to 
prevent needless injury to the reputation of a person and if such person has not requested a public meeting.

Government, 
Military and 
Veterans Affairs
01/26/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1507

Support

LB273 Dubas Change the Tax Equity and Educational Opportunities Support Act to provide for converted contracts and 
converted contract option students

Education
01/31/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

LB273 
amended into 
LB 235

Support

LB283 Haar

HAAR PRIORITY 
BILL (2011)

Provide school boards with tax levy and bond authority relating to energy efficiency projects

Permits tax levy authority and bond authority for energy efficiency projects under the existing 
environmental hazard/accessibility barrier abatement provisions of law.  NCSA Summary.  

(LB522:  Adopt the High Performance Green Schools Transparency Act)

Education
03/01/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

03/09/11 03/23/11 4/14/201
1

04/20/11 LB522 
amended into 
LB 283

Support

LB287 Adams Change provisions relating to summer school and early childhood summer sessions

Expands the existing TEEOSA summer school allowance for students enrolled in a summer session of an 
early childhood education program.  Changes the calculation of the allowance.  Further provides that each 
school district will receive an additional six-tenths of a summer school student unit for each early childhood 
education student unit attributed to a free lunch and free milk. NCSA Summary.

Education
01/31/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

LB287 
amended into 
LB235

Support

92



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB364 Fischer Change provisions relating to calculation of state aid to schools

Revises state aid formula to eliminate the instructional time allowance, the teacher education allowance, 
and the student growth adjustment for computation of state aid in school fiscal year 2011-12 and beyond.  
Although the effect on individual school districts is not yet known, Senator Fischer has indicated her intent 
was to reduce the total liability for state aid to schools.  NCSA Summary.

Education
01/31/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB381 Speaker Flood Change provisions relating to educational service units, withdraw from the Compact for Education, and 
eliminate a student achievement coordinator

Education
02/14/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Monitor? 

LB382 Nordquist

NE RETIREMENT 
SYSTEMS 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Change deposit and contribution rates for certain retirement systems

Requires School Retirement Fund retirement contributions from employees of 9.28% of compensation from 
9/2011 through 8/2013 and contributions of 8.28% from 9/2013 through 8/2014.  The most recent required 
contribution was 8.28%.  From 7/2011 until 7/2013, requires retirement contributions paid by Nebraska 
State Patrol officers or paid on the officer’s behalf of 19%of monthly compensation. From 2013 onward, 
requires 16% contribution.  Provides for assessments against the appropriation of the Nebraska State Patrol 
in those amounts for those periods.  

NCSA:  Proposes to change the employee contribution rate for the School Employees Plan from 8.28% to 
9.28% effective September 1, 2011.  The employer rate (equal to 101% of the employee rate) would 
increase from 8.36% to 9.37%.  It is important to note that the bill was introduced on behalf of the 
Governor and that, while the proposal calls for a full percentage increase, the Retirement Committee is not 
bound to that idea.  It is likely that LB 382 will be advanced from committee this session, but it may not 
have to include a full percent increase.  Talks are under way to examine, for instance, a half percent 
increase or some figure less than a full percent.  The underlying objective is to address the immediate 
actuarial shortfall and to be cognizant of the increased burden placed on employees as well as employers.

Nebraska 
Retirement 
Systems
02/01/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

04/07/11 04/18/11 04/26/11 Monitor ?

LB397 Lathrop

BUSINESS AND 
LABOR PRIORITY 
BILL (2011)

SPEAKER MAJOR 
PROPOSAL (2011)

Redefine a term in the Industrial Relations Act

Clarifies that the reference to employer in the definition of employee refers to the definition of employer 
provided by the Industrial Relations Act.  Shell bill for CIR.

See LB 619, LB 664, LR29CA

Business and 
Labor
02/07/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524
04/13/11
at 12:00 p.m.
Room 2102

04/07/11 Monitor ?

93



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB430 Cornett Change property tax levy limitations

Provides that property tax levies for “bonds as defined in section 10-134” rather than “bonded 
indebtedness” are not subject to the local government levy limits established under section 77-3442.  
Resolves a dispute between State Auditor’s office and certain SIDs.    

ENDC legislation

Revenue
02/02/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

03/04/11 Support

LB439 Heidemann Change valuation of agricultural and horticultural land for school tax purposes

Provides that for school district taxation purposes, agricultural and horticultural land shall be valued at 65% 
of its actual value, and greenland 65% of its special value.  Provides that the acceptable range of TERC 
variation for such land for school district taxation purposes is 59% to 65% of actual value.  For purposes of 
TEEOSA, provides that agricultural and horticultural land has a state aid value of 62% of actual value and 
greenland has a state aid value of 62% of the special valuation. NCSA summary.  

Revenue
03/03/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Oppose

LB440 Heidemann Change adjusted-valuation provisions within the Tax Equity and Educational Opportunities Support Act

Provides for a gradual reduction (1% per year) in agricultural and horticultural land state aid value and 
greenland state aid value from the current 72% to 62% of actual value over the course of the next 10 years.  
The state aid value is used to calculate TEEOSA aid. NCSA Summary.

Education
02/01/11 at 
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Killed 
2/17/2011

Oppose

LB446 Adams Change duties and funding provisions relating to educational service units

Provides that an ESU may consist of a single school district if that district is a Class IV or Class V district.  
Provides that only an ESU with four or members or that is composed of a single Class IV or V school 
district may levy a tax.  Provides for the calculation of the adjusted students number for a single member 
ESU.  Provides that it is the intent of the legislature that each multidistrict ESU use 5% of its funding for 
core services and technology infrastructure for cooperative projects between member school districts and 
5% for core services and technology infrastructure statewide projects.  

Education
02/14/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

94



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB463 Ashford

JUDICIARY 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Change juvenile penalty, records, service plan, probation sanctions, and truancy provisions

Expands access to sealed records to law enforcement agency if a person whose record has been sealed 
applies for employment with the law enforcement agency. All school districts shall have a policy that 
outlines how the school district and the county attorney will handle cases in which excessive absences are 
due to documented serious illness. If a child is absent more than ten days per year or the hourly equivalent 
or is suspended from school for any reason, the school district shall inform and request from juvenile 
probation officers as defined in section 29-2246, the Department of Health and Human Services and any 
private entity providing services to children and families pursuant to a contract with the department, and 
the Nebraska Commission on Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice any information relating to such child 
available to the officers, department, entities, and commission. The officers, department, entities, and 
commission shall provide any such information in their records to the school district. Includes reducing 
truancy in the list of duties of the learning community.  Redefines truancy as students who are absent for 
more than ten days each year.  

(LB79:  Provide grants for court appointed special advocate programs)

Judiciary
02/24/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1113

03/14/11 04/11/11

LB79 
amended into 
LB 463

Oppose

LB482 Utter

UTTER PRIORITY 
BILL (2011)

Change provisions governing industrial disputes involving municipal corporations under the Industrial 
Relations Act

Business and 
Labor
02/07/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Support

LB486 Louden Change provisions relating to compensation and contributions under the School Employees Retirement Act

Sunsets the 7% rule effective June 30, 2012.  Thereafter, any amount of annual salary increase exceeding 
9% would be excluded for purposes of computation of retirement benefits and there would be no 
exemptions to this rule.  Currently, a plan member of the School Employees Retirement System applying 
for retirement benefits is subject to have his/her salary examined by NPERS (the Retirement Agency) for 
the 60 months leading up to the anticipated date of retirement.  Under the current rule, any amount of 
annual salary increase exceeding 7% would be excluded for purposes of computation of retirement benefits 
unless at least one of three exemptions applies.

NCSA:  Proposes to eliminate the 7% Rule under the School Employees Plan along with the three 
exemptions under the rule and, in exchange, to raise the cap for purposes of calculating benefits to 9% with 
no exemptions. Under the existing rule, a plan member applying for retirement benefits is subject to have 
his/her salary examined by NPERS (the Retirement Agency) for the 60 months leading up to the declared 
date of retirement.  Any amount of annual salary exceeding 7% would be excluded for purposes of 
computation of retirement benefits unless at least one of three exemptions applies.  The three exemptions 
are:  A.  Substantial change of employment position or duties, B.  Result of collective bargaining 
agreement, or C.  District-wide permanent benefit-plan change.

Under LB 486, the existing 7% Rule would sunset on June 30, 2012, and, beginning July 1, 2012, a new 
l  ld l  f  id i  f l  i  h  i  f b fi   U d  h  d l   

Nebraska 
Retirement 
Systems
02/08/11
at 12:10 p.m.
room 1525

LB486 
amended into 
LB 509

Oppose

95



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB509 Nebraska Retirement 
Systems Committee

NE RETIREMENT 
SYSTEMS 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Change provisions relating to retirement

NCSA:  Represents the technical cleanup bill for the NPERS.  One of the more significant changes 
proposed in LB 509 is a re-codification effort to place all cost-of-living (COLA) related provisions of each 
retirement plan into one section of law and to eliminate obsolete language.  The bill does not change or alter 
any existing COLA laws.  The bill neither increases nor diminishes any benefit for current or future retires.

(LB246:  Provide Nebraska State Patrol retirement benefits to a spouse who remarries)

(LB486:  Change provisions relating to compensation and contributions under the School Employees 
Retirement Act)

(LB532:  Provide for potential transfer of certain Department of Labor employees to the state retirement 
system)

Nebraska 
Retirement 
Systems
02/08/11
at 12:10 p.m.
Room 1525

03/04/11 03/22/11 03/29/11 Passed w/E 
04/08/11
04/14/11

LB246, 
LB486, and 
LB 532 
amended into 
LB 509

Support

(LB486 Oppose)

LB512 Christensen

SPEAKER FLOOD 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Change provisions relating to mental health determinations regarding the possession and purchase of 
handguns

(LB138:  Change residency requirements under the Concealed Handgun Permit Act)

(LB618: Authorize possession of firearms as prescribed for school or school event security)

Judiciary
02/23/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1113

03/08/11 03/29/11 04/12/11 Passed 
04/20/11

LB138 and LB 
618 amended 
into LB 512

Support

LB531 Fulton Change permissible budget reserves for schools

Lowers MPS allowable reserve percentage from 20% to 15%.  Provides that any reduction in a school 
district’s budget made to comply with the budget limitation under the state aid formula must affect 
classroom expenses at a last resort.  The obvious intent behind the bill is to force school districts to utilize 
its reserves toward instructional staff and to place instructional staff as the priority for budget expenditures.  
NCSA Summary.

Education
02/01/11 at 
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB537 Karpisek Change provisions relating to budget limitations and property tax levy limitations Revenue
02/04/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Support

LB544 Pahls

PAHLS PRIORITY 
BILL (2011)

Change provisions relating to civics education for students

Currently, state law provides that for grades below grade 6, one hour a week of school time should be 
devoted to “the duties of citizenship.”  This bill expands upon that by adding “including active 
participation in the improvement of a citizen's community, state, country, and world and the value and 
practice of civil discourse between opposing interests.”

Education
03/15/11
at 1:30 p.m.
room 1525
CANCELLED
02/14/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

03/03/11 03/15/11 03/29/11 Passed 
04/20/11
Signed by the 
Governor 
04/26/11

Oppose

96



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB548 McCoy Change, transfer, and eliminate provisions relating to learning communities

Replaces the 18 generally elected voting members of learning community coordinating council with 9 
school board members from the districts in the learning community.  Selection of members: (a) one school 
board member would be appointed by the other school district members from each of the six learning 
community geographic districts (the elected member must live in the district) and (2) three at large school 
board members as appointed by all school board members within the learning community. Changes duties 
of the superintendent advisory committee.  Eliminates the achievement subcouncil and gives some of those 
previous duties to the superintendent advisory committee.  
Provides that the learning community coordinating council must approve a focus program, focus school, or 
pathway program before it is established by a learning community school districts.  Provides that learning 
community school districts may independently participate in one or more joint entities formed pursuant to 
the Interlocal Cooperation Act for the purpose of creating, implementing, and operating focus programs, 
focus schools, magnet schools, or pathway programs which shall not require the approval of the learning 
community coordinating council. Removes language designating a school district as the primary school 
district when the school districts collaborate on a focus program, focus school, or magnet school.  Provides 
that student selection and attendance for such focus programs, focus schools, magnet schools, and pathway 
programs, whether approved by the learning community coordinating council or created and operated 

Education
02/22/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Killed 
03/03/11

Support

LB558 Nordquist

NORDQUIST 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Change provisions relating to focus schools, focus programs, and magnet schools

Removes the “pursuant to the diversity plan developed
by the learning community coordinating council” language after the section that allows any members 
school district of a learning community to establish one or more focus programs, focus schools, or magnet 
schools.  Provides that if a focus school or focus program is part of a diversity plan of the learning 
community, it is eligible for an allowance.  Removes the designation of a primary school district when the 
school districts collaborate on a focus program, focus school, or magnet school.

Education
02/22/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

03/10/11 03/29/11 04/12/11 Passed 
04/20/11

Signed by the 
Governor 
04/26/11

Monitor

LB564 Fulton

FULTON 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Change and eliminate provisions of the Industrial Relations Act and the State Employees Collective 
Bargaining Act

Business and 
Labor
02/07/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Supprot

LB572 Price Limit transfers of students between learning community member school districts

Provides that if a learning community coordinating council creates an elementary learning center within a 
member school district, a student residing in such member school district is not eligible to transfer to 
another school district within the learning community.

Education
02/28/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

97



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB582 Haar Adopt the Student Expression Act

Provides that the right of students to free expression in all public schools in Nebraska shall not be abridged 
except as provided in the Student Expression Act.  Prohibits certain types of student expression including 
(1) obscene expressions, defamatory expressions, and expression that creates clear and present danger of 
unlawful acts or causes material and substantial disruption of the school or invasion of privacy.  Provides 
that the Legislature encourages school districts to adopt and publish policies on student expression 
following the guidelines of the Student Expression Act.

Education
03/08/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB591 Gloor Provide for a syndromic surveillance program and change immunization information exchange provisions

The Department of Health and Human Services shall develop a syndromic surveillance program that 
respects patient privacy and benefits from advances in both electronic health records and electronic health 
information exchange. The syndromic surveillance program shall include the monitoring, detection, and 
investigation of public health threats. The department shall adopt standards for syndromic surveillance 
reporting by hospitals. The department may require syndromic surveillance reporting by other health care 
facilities or any person issued a credential by the department.  The department shall a schedule for the 
implementation of full electronic reporting of all syndromic surveillance data elements. Confidentiality and 
immunity provisions apply to syndromic surveillance data reports.  It is the intent of immunization 
information between professionals, facilities, and  departments health care professionals, health care 
facilities, health  care services, schools, postsecondary educational institutions, licensed child care facilities, 
electronic health-record systems,  public health departments, health departments of other states, Indian  
health services, and tribes for the purpose of protecting the public  health by facilitating age-appropriate 
immunizations which will  minimize the risk of outbreak of childhood vaccine-preventable diseases.  The 
Department of Health and Human Services shall establish an immunization information system for the 
purpose of providing a central data base.

Health and 
Human Services
02/24/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1510

03/10/11 Oppose

LB615 Krist Change provisions relating to access to student records and learning community reporting and diversity 
plans

See LB 636

Education
02/22/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB618 Harr Authorize possession of firearms as prescribed for school or school event security

Provides that peace officers or other duly authorized law enforcement officers, when contracted to or 
otherwise requested to by a school district, may possess a firearm on school property.

Judiciary
02/16/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1113

03/08/11

LB618 
amended into 
LB 512

Support

LB619 Larson Remove school districts, learning communities, and educational service units from the Industrial Relations 
Act

See LB 397, LB 664, LR29CA

Business and 
Labor
02/07/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Oppose

98



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB633 Adams Change provisions relating to certain tax levies and certain bonds of school districts and authorize 
refunding bonds

Education
03/01/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

03/17/11 Support

LB634 Adams Change provisions relating to the tax levy authority of school districts relating to certain bonds

Allows a school district to exceed the maximum levy of 5.2¢ (to cover environmental hazard abetment and 
other projects) in any year in which: (1) the taxable valuation of the district is lower than the taxable 
valuation in the year in which the district last issued bonds pursuant to this section and (2) the maximum 
levy of 5.2¢ is insufficient to meet the combined annual principal and interest obligations for all bonds 
issued under section 79-10,110.  The amount generated from a district's levy in excess of the maximum 
levy of 5.2¢ upon the taxable valuation of the district may not exceed the combined annual principal and 
interest obligations for such bonds minus the amount generated by levying the maximum levy of 5.2¢ upon 
the taxable valuation of the district and minus any federal payments or subsidies associated with such 
bonds.

Education
03/01/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Support

LB635 Adams Change the Quality Education Accountability Act

Requires the State Board of Education to establish an index to be used to measure the performance of 
individual public schools beginning with school year 2012-13.  Schools who do not meet the minimum 
level of performance established by the board would be designated as a “priority school” and an 
intervention team would be established for each priority school.  The intervention team would develop 
annual progress plans.  Provides for possible loss of accreditation after 5 years of being a priority school.  

Education
03/15/11
at 1:30 p.m.
room 1525

LB635 
amended into 
LB 637

Support

LB636 Adams Change provisions relating to access to student records and learning community reporting and diversity 
plans

Permits the disclosure of certain student records to learning community employees, but without identifiable 
personal information.  Requires the learning community coordinating council to annually report data and 
information provided by member school districts under certain sections to the Education Committee.  
Changes requirements for the learning community school districts to provide copies of applications 
submitted to attend a focus school, focus program, magnet school, or school building not in the student’s 
attendance area and to mark whether that application was accepted or rejected. 

See LB 615

Education
02/22/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

LB637 Adams

EDUCATION 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Adopt the Postsecondary Institution Act and change provisions relating to the Coordinating Commission 
for Postsecondary Education

(LB58:  Provide for a study of dual-enrollment courses and career academies)

(LB372:  Change provisions relating to postsecondary course and program offerings)

(LB637:  Change the Quality Education Accountability Act)

Education
02/07/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1525

03/17/11 04/07/11 04/20/11

LB58, 372, 
and LB 635 
amended into 
LB 637

(LB58:
MPS Support)

(LB635:
MPS Support)

99



BILL 
NO.

INTRODUCER(S)
DESCRIPTION AND
SUMMARY OF BILL

COMM. & 
HRG. DATE

GF SF FR Status POSITION

LB664 Nelson

NELSON 
PRIORITY BILL 
(2011)

Repeal the Industrial Relations Act and the State Employees Collective Bargaining Act and prohibit public 
collective bargaining and work stoppage

Business and 
Labor
02/07/11
at 1:30 p.m.
Room 1524

Support

LB680 Heidemann Adopt the School Employees Cash Balance Retirement Act

Creates a cash balance retirement system for new hire school employees, similar to the current plan offered 
to state employees, often referred to as a hybrid of both defined benefit and defined contribution plans.  
Does not impact the retirement system for existing school employees.   Under the State Employees 
Retirement Plan, employees contribute about 4.8% of salary and the employer (the state) contributes about 
7.5% of salary to an employee account.  The employee cannot control investment of the account, but is 
guaranteed an annual return of at least 5% a year.  The account can receive a higher return, depending on 
investment earnings.  At retirement, the employee may buy an annuity, or withdraw the balance in a lump 
sum or in installments.  The bill will likely be referred to an interim study after the session adjourns.  

NCSA:  Would create a cash balance retirement system for new hire school employees.  It is important to 
note this legislation would not change the retirement system for existing school employees.  The bill 
proposes a retirement system similar to the current plan offered to state employees, often referred to as a 
hybrid system (both a defined benefit and defined contribution plan).  Senator Heidemann offered the bill 
knowing that it would require significant study.  The bill will likely be referred to an interim study after the 
session adjourns.

Nebraska 
Retirement 
Systems
03/01/11
at 12:10 p.m.
Room 1525

Oppose

100



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET

AGENDA ITEM: Instructional Time

MEETING DATE: May 2, 2011

DEPARTMENT: Educational Services

TITLE AND
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Instructional Time Option

ACTION DESIRED: __X__ Discussion

BACKGROUND: The Board of Education’s comments at the April 18, 2011, meeting, indicated that
there was a desire to increase instructional time to better address the District’s curriculum especially at
the elementary level and to be more comparable to the instructional time provided in surrounding
districts, retain the Professional Learning Community collaborative time (Elem. and H.S.), recapture the
half day of school at the end of the year, and minimize the use of flexible scheduling at the high schools.
This was to be done while minimizing added costs for transportation and other intangibles.

The attached spreadsheet estimates the state aid allowance for 2013-2014 that would be based upon the
instructional time reported in October of 2012 for the 2011-2012 academic year. The estimate assumes
that state parameters do not change and the following changes to District schedules are made for the
2011-2012 school year:

 Elementary student hours would be 8:30 – 3:45 thus adding 30 minutes/day on M, T, Th, F
 Wednesday Elementary early release would be at 2:15. This also adds 30 min to Elementary

schedule on Wednesday
 Middle school student hours would be 7:45 – 3:00 adding 15 minutes/day
 High School hours would remain as is with the exception that the 20 hours of flex scheduling

would be reduced from 20 to 10 hours
 Assumes the last day of school would be a full day
 Double routing of buses, with a 45 minute turnaround, is retained with no added costs for buses,

SPED buses, or SPED vans

A final caveat is that if Millard gets more of the "state aid pot" through the Instructional Time
Allowance, the amount to be distributed to all schools under other parts of the formula will need to be
reduced. Since Millard receives over 8% of all state aid, the District should probably expect the
Instructional Time Allowance impact to be only about 92% of the amount calculated -- the balance
would be reductions in other parts of the formula.

RECOMMENDATIONS: Discussion

STRATEGIC PLAN REFERENCE: None

TIMELINE: N/A

RESPONSIBLE PERSON(S): Mark Feldhausen, Assoc. Supt. (Educational Services)
Ken Fossen, Assoc. Supt. (General Administration)

SUPERINTENDENT’S APPROVAL: ______________________
(Signature)

BOARD ACTION:

101

sphelps
Kieths Stamp



Grade Current Hrs 

(w/o zero or 

8th and all 

hrs and days 

off counted)

Proposed               

Elem 8:30 - 3:45        

MS  7:45 - 3:00       

HS 8:00 - 3:15  

Includes Elem 

Wed Early 

Release 2:15 and 

HS Mon. 8:45 

Start and HS 10 

hrs

Proposed               

Elem 8:30 - 3:45        

MS  7:45 - 3:00       

HS 8:00 - 3:15  

Includes Elem 

Wed Early Release 

2:15 and HS Mon. 

8:45 Start and HS 

10 hrs  Retain 

Elem and MS 

transition time School 

Level

Teacher 

Start 

Time

Teacher 

End Time

K 1071.00 1125.00 1124.00

1 1077.00 1125.00 1124.50

2 1077.00 1125.00 1124.50

3 1077.00 1125.00 1124.50

4 1077.00 1125.00 1124.50

5 1077.00 1125.00 1124.50

6 1159.53 1215.00 1208.00

7 1158.53 1215.00 1208.00

8 1158.52 1215.00 1208.00

9 1157.43 1188.00 1188.00

10 1148.85 1188.00 1188.00

11 1151.06 1188.00 1188.00

12 1148.18 1188.00 1188.00

MPS Avg. 1118.32 1165.15 1163.27

Instructional 

Time Value  $3,463,750.63 $3,172,379.33

92% of 

Instructional 

Time Value $3,186,650.58 $2,918,588.98

Ratio (state 

avg/MPS 

Avg)  1.019605203 1.01795601

2010-2011 

Statewide 

Avg. 1142.75

2010-2011 

Formula 

Students 22168.175

Statewide Avg Gen 

Fund 

Expense/Student $9,376.19

85% of 

State 

Stdent 

Avg Exp $7,969.76

Proposed time changes allow for double routing of buses.

H.S. 7:30 3:45

Elem. 8:00 4:15

M.S. 7:15 3:30

102


	Board Packet May 2, 2011
	Agenda
	Administrative Memorandum
	E.1. Board Minutes April 18, 2011
	Financials
	F.1. Employees of the Month
	H.1. Reduction of Board Applications
	H.2. First Reading of POlicy 3122 - Support Services - Business - Procurement Cards
	Policy 3122
	H.3. Approval of Rule 3811.1 - Support Services - Transportation - Students- Regular Education
	Rule 3811.1
	H.4. First Reading of Policy 5410 - Pupil Services - Substance Use
	Policy 5410
	H.5. First Reading of Policy 5480 - Pupil Services - Search and Seizure
	Policy 5480
	H.6. First Reading of Policy 5490 - Pupil Services - Use of Alcohol and other Drug Testing Technology
	Policy 5490
	I.7. Administrator for Hire
	H.8. Approval of Personnel Actions: Resignations and New Hires
	Resignations
	New Hires
	I.1. Enrollment Report
	I.2. Legislative Update
	I.3. Report on Instructional Time 



